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The Executive team has 
maintained a regular meeting 
schedule to ensure that the 
variety of issues that face the 
management of a contemporary 
surf club are addressed. The 
Executive voluntarily offers time 
and expertise, and their direction 
and professionalism have been 
invaluable to me in steering the club 
into this new era. A heartfelt thank 
you to Jenni Cutri, Linda Walker, 
Angela Razvi, Andrew Young, 
Grant Trew, John Guilfoyle, Damien 
van Pelt, Ian Scott and our Club 

Captains, Jason Evans, Gabrielle 
Murphy and Craig Hutchison. 
Generous and competent people 
like this are the heart of our club.

In closing, I would like to thank the 
Executive, the Administration team, 
and each and every member of the 
club for your ongoing dedication. 
The support of our State body 
SLSWA is also acknowledged and 
greatly appreciated.

Once again it has been a privilege 
to serve as President of the City of 
Perth Surf Lifesaving Club in the 
2017/18 season and I look forward to 
the challenges and successes of the 
coming year.

Stephen Carrick 
President

Our members have continued to 
respect and take pride in their 
building and engagement has 
increased from our members and 
visitors in the use of its facilities. 
This increase in the use of the 
building underpins our improved 
financial position.

In 2016/17 there were many 
unknowns as we settled into our 
new club facilities. Club finances 
were stretched to the limit and we 
needed to ask our membership for 
assistance, and the response was 
strong. Following this support, we 
have been able to rationalise our 
operational costs and continue 
to grow club revenue through 
continuous review of the way our 
business as a surf club is undertaken.

Visitation to the City Beach precinct 
continues to grow and these larger 
numbers have led to a corresponding 
increase in expectation from the 
community about the service we 
offer. This has meant more demands 
on our patrolling members and 
even more awareness of activity on 
the beach. Once again our patrols 
responded enthusiastically and the 
standard of their volunteer service is 
a credit to every patrolling member. 
It is clear that the way we respond 
to beach usage and modern beach 
management needs to evolve 
continually, and this is immediately 
apparent in how we are working to 
engage with the benefits of new 
technologies such as drones.

Our ‘One Club One Community’ 
vision is now an integral part of the 
way the club thinks about itself and 
operates, and is the basis from which 
we engage with the expectations 
of both our members and our 
community.

Our membership has remained 
steady with over 1,420 members in 
the last year. Our Gym Coordinator 
and Administration team have done 
a wonderful job in ensuring our gym 
facility is kept in excellent condition 
and in implementing timely initiatives 
to encourage membership. The 
success of the early morning training 
sessions is one such successful 
initiative.

Traditional club time on Friday 
nights and Sunday mornings were 
notably stronger over the past year. 
Focussed around the Galley and 
courtyard, support is growing with 
Friday and Sunday experiences 
once again becoming a regular part 
of club life. Our Club Captains and 
our Nipper section have been major 
drivers behind this positive trend.

A significant part of our club is 
our relationship with our sponsors 
and our partner. Our sponsors are 
highlighted throughout this report 
and, on behalf of the club and its 
members, I offer each of you a 
huge thank you for your continuing 
support of and contribution to  
our club.

Our ‘One Club, One Community’ 
vision is one that is shared by our 
valued partner, Maxima. Without this 
wonderful partnership with Maxima, 
the building fitout would not be to 
the high standard that has been 
achieved. From all of our members, 
thank you to the Hutton family and 
to Maxima-The Opportunity Group 
for their partnership with the City of 
Perth SLSC.

Our Administration team has 
continued capably to manage 
our growing business. Patrick 
Anderson Loake was appointed 
as Acting Manager during the 
year and accepted the challenge 
with great enthusiasm. Our skill 
base is broadening with Narelle 
Pyne, Kylie Leaman and Rachael 
Hughes, along with Patrick, forming 
our Administration team. Sophie 
Wulff (Reception) accepted a 
new opportunity after providing 
wonderful service to the club during 
our first year of new club operation. 
Our Administration team is the 
public face of our organisation and 
they do a wonderful job.

PRESIDENT 
REPORT

It is with pleasure that I present 
the 2017/18 Annual Report. June 
2018 marks two years of the 
City of Perth SLSC occupying 
and operating from our new 
clubrooms. We continue to learn 
and grow as we address the 
challenges and opportunities of 
operating in our new building.

1935 C.Bader *
1935 R.E.Gatherer *
1935 H.F.Bader *
1935 A.J.Levy *
1939 A.Peacock *
1943 J.Mayberry *
1944 R.L.Sanderson *
1945 M.McMillan *
1946 G.S.Parr *
1948 L.D.Jacks *
1949 H.M.Henderson *
1950 E.W.C.Jacks *
1951 O.E.Harmer *
1952 W.A.Mortimer *
1956 H.K.Riley mbe *

1960 W.R.Somerford *
1963 T.J.Hayden *
1966 G.Kino *
1966 R.B.Ramsay
1971 I.D.Scott oam
1971 J.Trethowan
1974 R.G.Roberts oam *
1975 E.R.J Mickle bm
1977 S.R.Jacks *
1980 J.F.Harbison *
1984 J.Leivers
1987 R.L.Groser
1988 S.Scott
1988 G.R.Trew
1989 R.E.Harper

1989 R.B.McRae *
1989 G.A.Mickle
1992 A.Collins
1992 K.E.J.Hogg
1992 I.D.McRae
1993 W.A.Jarman
1993 G.Leivers
1993 J.L.Pouleris
1995 L.M.Buchan
1997 R.B.Somerford
1998 D.Trew
2001 W.E.Gaynor oam
2001 J.H.O’Donoghue
2001 J.I.Scott
2004 P.C.Andrew

2004 J.C.Jardine *
2005 J.L.Scott
2005 R.F.Turner
2008 R.W.King
2010 M.L.Lowther
2010 G.S.Wilson
2012 P.L.Cohen
2012 B.D.Lilburne
2012 P.G.Waey
2015 M.A.Hughes
2015 G.R.Trew
2016 L.T.Kelly
2018 E.Gibbs

* Denotes deceased

PRESIDENT REPORT CONT...

LIFE MEMBERS

EDWIN ‘EDDIE’ GIBBS
Eddie joined City of Perth in August 
1987 having previously been a 
member of the Midway SLSC in 
New Zealand where he gained 
his Bronze Medallion in 1974.  He 
has been a committed and valued 
member for 30 years. A behind the 
scenes worker, Eddie has been and 
still is a tireless supporter of Surf 
Sports and is always available to do 
whatever is needed.  His assistance 
to competitors has been invaluable 
in relation to helping transport gear 
and set up tents and equipment at 
all competitions including the State 
 and Australian Championships 
and other competitions such as the 
Avon Descent, the Coolangatta Gold 
and the Triple S Ski Series. 

He held the position of Club Team 
Manager for three years, Vice 
President for one year, Competition 
Officer for four years and Ski 
Coordinator for eight years and 
ongoing. Eddie has won the Best 
Club member trophy and has State 
and Australian Masters medals in 
Beach Flags, Board Rescue, Board 
Relay and Board Race.

He is a popular member who is very 
much appreciated. 
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FINANCIAL REPORT

During the 2017/18 season, 
club operations have been 
through a period of growth. The 
administration, led by the Executive 
Committee, strived to increase the 
services the club can provide to 
members. As operations grew, so 
did our administration team.

Over the last year we have had 
some movement in administration 
positions. After the departure of 
Clare Barber, Narelle Pyne joined 
us to assume the role of Club 
Manager. Thank you to Clare for 
all the time and effort you have 
put into the club throughout the 
tough transition period. Due to 
time restraints, Narelle has had to 
reduce her workload, however she 
is still the driving force of several 
projects around the club. Sophie 
Wulff has also moved on from her 
position but is still involved with the 
club as a volunteer. Rachael Hughes 
has taken over Sophie’s role, and 
is doing a terrific job of building 
on the function booking system 
developed by Sophie. Thank you to 
Kylie Leaman who has continued 
to work meticulously behind the 
scenes. Kylie’s consistent and 
reliable support during the staff 
changeovers has been invaluable.

Now moving in to the 2018/19 
season we are looking to build 
strong communication channels 
throughout the club. Better 
communication will provide more 
support for all members. We are 
currently undergoing a huge 
project to rebuild our ICT systems, 
especially our website. A huge 
thank you must go to Farook Razvi, 
Clayton Dorrington, & Damien Van 
Pelt of the ICT Steering Committee. 
They have donated a significant 
amount of time and energy to 
review and help implement the 
change to our ICT systems. Look 
out for our new website which is 
currently in development:  
www.cityofperthslsc.com.au

The gourmet bacon and egg 
sandwiches on a Sunday morning 
could be smelt out on the water, 
motivating our members to get 
to The Galley for some food and 
a coffee. Thanks to Rick Allen for 
providing our members with such 
high-quality food. Next season, 
operations of The Galley will be 
moved in house with some exciting 
new changes to come.

We are now seasoned hands at 
dealing with our gym when it 
becomes a swimming pool. Ian 
Scott’s role in fixing issues like this 
throughout the building have been 
vital to our success this year. Ian’s 
assistance allowed for less time to 
be put into fixing the gym floor, and 
more time into growing the service 
that the gym provides for our 
members.

The volunteers behind the admin 
staff have been fantastic this 
year. The Executive Committee 
have provided direction and 
assisted the administration 
team in implementation of their 
plan. Brigitte Schuhkraft and 
her team have once again taken 
shop operations out of the 
administration’s hands. The House 
Committee have been hard at 
work behind the scenes helping to 
maintain our club. Thank you all.

The product of City of Perth 
SLSC continues to develop in our 
new building as seasons go by. 
I must stress that one thing has 
not changed, we are a Surf Life 
Saving Club first and none of our 
operations are possible without the 
volunteers patrolling the beach. As 
a member of staff and a member of 
the club, I am proud to be part of 
this community.

Patrick Anderson Loake
Administration Manager

ADMINISTRATION MANAGER REPORT

On behalf of the Executive, I am 
pleased to report the Club made 
an operating profit of $75,469 for 
the 2017/18 financial year. Key 
highlights were:

• Total income received was 
$824,224 compared to $713,543 
last year

• Income from membership fees 
is up on last year

• Gym membership numbers are 
increasing with the gym now 
covering their direct operating 
costs

• Expenses are less than last 
year primarily due to lower 
employment costs from 
staff vacancies 

• An IT Steering Committee has 
been established to review 
information technology and 
communication costs and to 
upgrade the Club website

• Alternative arrangements for 
The Galley are being considered 
to achieve a more financially 
sustainable outcome for 
the Club

• Income from function bookings 
is growing

• Expense control continues to be 
a focus for the Executive

KEY INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ITEMS
Income 2017/18 2016/17
- Membership & Gym fees $386,396 $269,847 
- Grants, Donations & Sponsorship $171,059 $192,356 
- Room Hire – functions $40,689 $23,299 
- Club Merchandise sales $36,381 $21,654 
- Events & Promotions $44,093 $35,661

Expenses 2017/18 2016/17 
- Employment expenses $153,339 $198,689 
- Administration $91,837 $79,569 
- Facilities $149,682 $175,796 
- Depreciation $142,748 $133,697

SPECIAL THANKS
I would like to personally thank:

• Patrick Anderson Loake, Narelle Pyne, Kylie Leaman and Rachael 
Hughes for the great work they do supporting the Club and 
our members

• John and Bill Hutton for Maxima’s sponsorship and ongoing 
financial support

• Jane Scott and Tanya Andrew at Barnetts Bookkeeping for their 
accounting services and advice

• Brigitte Schuhkraft for managing the Club merchandise shop
• Farook Razvi and Clayton Dorrington for their assistance with making 

our IT systems better
• To all our sponsors and volunteers for their support to help make a 

great club!

Damien Van Pelt
Director of Finance
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The Club Captain’s role is one of 
the best in the club. We have the 
opportunity to be involved in a 
range of areas and our initiatives 
are limited only by our imagination 
and time. The club community is 
becoming less seasonal and more 
year-round, which has provided 
further opportunities for social 
and competitive events. These 
events are only possible because 
of the hard work of a number of 
people and the support of our club 
members and community.

Every single person in this club is 
a volunteer and we all understand 
the commitment each of us makes. 
Sometimes life gets in the way and 
limits the time we can give, and 
because of these factors, Jason 
Evans had to step down from his 
role as Co-Club Captain after two 
and half years of enthusiastic and 
essential work. I (Gabby), would like 
to thank Jason for all his efforts and 
know that none of the progress we 
have made over the last few years 
would have been possible without 
him. Being surrounded by kind 
and generous people, I wasn’t left 
alone for long, and Craig Hutchison 
stepped up mid-season to fill the 
Co-Captain role. Being a multi-
talented athlete, Craig was able to 
help in a great variety of areas at 
the States and Aussies, as well as 
with our Sunday morning program.

At the start of this season we 
initiated a few new projects, some 
of which were more successful 
than others. This experimenting 
has been essential to learning 
how best to reach as many people 
as possible and improve our club 
cohesion. The Champion Patrol 
Club Championship event is an 
example of a new event format that, 
whilst being successfully ran, still 
has room for improvement. Sunday 
morning meetings have remained 
an essential element of club life and 
were well attended at the beginning 
of the season. Numbers started to 
fade towards the end of the year 
which made it more difficult to 
deliver important messages and 
congratulations, so with next season 
in mind, please remember to come 
down and participate.

The social calendar saw the return 
of some successful events, such 
as the Quiz Night run by Brittany 
Houghton, and the beginning of 
new events, such as the Dodge Ball 
tournament. Both of these examples 
were attended by members of 
all ages and disciplines, and also 
involved non-members who were 
able to experience our club culture. 
Penny Cohen, assisted by Sue 
and Ian Scott, also organised a 
Sundowner with past States and 
Aussies photos on display to give 
members insight into our rich 
competitive history. Events such as 
these provide an opportunity for us 
to continue to build and solidify our 
strong club community.

The season ended on a high with 
great success at the Aussies. City 
had an impressive number of Youth, 
Masters and Open participants 
competing in disciplines across 
the Boats, First Aid, Beach and 
Water arenas. We came away 
with plenty of medals, proving 
the high standard of our athletes. 
This is nothing new as our club 
has demonstrated its dominance 
throughout the season in both the 
Surf League series and the normal 
carnivals. However, the Aussies 
hold a special place in our hearts 
as a time for bonding, not only with 
the post-race celebrations, but also 
during competition. The Aussies 
Team 18 caps presented a uniform 
for spectators and competitors alike 
and helped us support each other 
even when the face under the hat 
may be new. A particular highlight 
was the number of people who 
came to support our Ladies March 
Past team on the final rainy Sunday 
morning of the championships.

Our support for each other is what 
makes the City of Perth a great 
club and will allow us to continue to 
grow. Our role as Club Captains is 
to support each and every member 
in any way we can and in return we 
need your support to make events 
and initiatives successful. 2017/2018 
has been an incredible season 
with so much growth in the club 
and we hope to facilitate as many 
improvements as we possibly can in 
the future.

Craig Hutchison and Gabrielle 
Murphy
Club Co-Captains

It has been another interesting year 
dealing with the multitude of tasks 
and procedures necessary for our 
efficient operation. Almost every 
week we uncover small problems, 
additional requirements of building 
operations, and maintenance. We 
have continued with the ongoing 
education of members in the 
correct use of security doors 
and club facilities.

Unseasonal heavy rain in January 
resulted in severe water ingress 
into the gym and training areas. 
Although the damage was covered 
by insurance, the resulting 
inconvenience and disruption to 
business was considerable.

Further racking has been installed 
in storage areas, but these seem 
to fill as fast as they are erected. In 
the off-season it is intended to have 
a hard look at further disposal of 
excess equipment, as well as more 
efficient stowage in a number of 
areas. The building does not allow 
for constant accumulation.

A number of member initiatives are 
in progress, in particular arranging 
for a cold water fountain and proper 
TV coverage.

My personal thanks to the House 
Committee, Greg Johnston and 
Greg Trew, together with Kevin 
Hogg and Mark Holland. Their very 
strong support throughout the year 
is greatly appreciated, and I lost 
track of the number of times they 
were ahead of the game and did 
things before I had time to ask.

The club operates in close liaison 
with officers from the Town of 
Cambridge regarding building 
use and maintenance, and we do 
appreciate their constant input  
and advice.

Thanks to the members of both 
Executive and Beach Operations 
Committee for their support 
through the year.

We look forward confidently to 
another great season ahead.

Ian Scott 
Director of Building Services

CLUB CAPTAINS REPORT DIRECTOR OF BUILDING SERVICES REPORT
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After a second full season in the 
new building, the club is continuing 
to grow and settle into one of the 
best surf club rooms in the country. 
Supported by a team of dedicated 
volunteers and professional staff, a 
number of member services have 
really found their feet. As a result, 
the usage of the club dramatically 
increased and we saw growth in the 
number of members.

Overall membership numbers 
continue to rise, with the 
Community Membership 
(Associates) more than doubling 
from last year’s figures. The gym 
surpassed the 2017/18 target of 200 
full-time equivalent associate gym 
members, and we currently have 
almost 33% of our total membership 
using the gym. The range of 
membership options available and 
the addition of morning classes 
allow the gym to cater for a diverse 
demographic of members. The club 
has also worked hard on a number 
of different marketing approaches, 
and the combination of short and 
long term gym memberships is 
proving successful. A big thank  
you to the staff who always have a 
smile or supportive comment for  
our members.

The Galley was a great hit this year 
and we saw the courtyard full on 
a number of Friday nights, Sunday 
mornings and a few special events. 
Coupled with the use of the training 
rooms for education courses, 
meetings and external events 
have seen the club continuing to 
work towards the goal of being a 
multifunctional facility.

The Executive has been working 
hard to lead the club and make 
balanced and positive decisions. 
A large part of this is being 
transparent when making decisions, 
which includes complying to the 
Constitution, relevant legislation, 
SLSA/SLSWA and club policies 
and by-laws. The management of 
conflicts of interest, both potential 
and real, has also been a focus 
and is considered when making 
operational decisions and for the 
procurement of all goods and 
services.

Once again, a big thank you to all of 
the volunteers that helped bring the 
club rooms to life. We also cannot 
underestimate the dedication 
and support provided by our 
administration staff.

Grant Trew
Director of Membership Services

MEMBERSHIP SERVICES REPORT

2017/18 MEMBERSHIP STATISTICS

Total
Male 
Members

Female
Members

Probationary 7 5 2
Junior (5-13 yrs) 450 207 243
Cadet (13-15 yrs) 51 24 27
Active (15-18 yrs) 80 42 38
Active (18 yrs +) 144 74 70
Award Member 15 1 14
Reserve Active 5 3 2
Long Service 69 51 18
Associate 219 161 58
Life Member 34 31 3
General 368 225 143
Honorary 2 2 0
Non Member Participants 0 0 0
Leave / Restricted 1 1 0

1445 827 618
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2018 has been a most rewarding and 
challenging year. The challenges 
began with a request for a change 
in the Patrol Calendar from the 
Town of Cambridge and SLSWA. 
The result was a new lifesaving 
agreement, moving the start of 
patrols from October to November 
and extending the season to Anzac 
Day in April. It also entails patrolling 
on all public holidays, including 
Christmas Day. This change was 
well accepted by the majority of 
patrolling members in our club.

The Sunday morning program was 
altered in an attempt to involve 
more club members, which allowed 
the Club Captain’s meeting to 
continue to be a great success. 
However, looking forward, a slight 
change in the starting time to avoid 
clashing with the Nippers’ meeting 
would be desirable.

This season, the beach set-up has 
been changed to accommodate 
an increase in beach activity. This 
permitted an improved integration 
of the groups using the limited 
space on the beach in front of the 
club. Furthermore, the assistance 
of junior members solved the 
problems in setting up the beach. 
They seemed to enjoy their new 
responsibility and completed their 
tasks with great enthusiasm. The 
beach looked amazing with club 
sponsors’ banners in prominent 
positions.

The patrol captains’ and members’ 
ability to set up for Patrol was 
much easier this year with the 
arrival of two new vehicles, the 
ATV from SLSA and our Holden 
Utility, sponsored by Metro Motors 
and Grant Lilleyman. In addition, 
drone patrols were introduced to 
our beach as part of an SLSWA 
trial program. Cambridge Council 
has also applied for two new 
observation pods, which should 
be installed for the next summer 
season.

Mobile service necessitated extra 
funding due to the increased 
workload involved in providing 
water safety for club activities 
and fundraising events. IRB 
drivers and crews provided water 
safety for patrols, state carnivals, 
Sunday mornings and a number of 
important fundraising activities. 
These include:

• The Sunset Ski Series – three 
races with four IRBs plus drivers 
and crew.

• The Rottnest Triathlon Series –  
IRB driver and crew, twelve 
rescue boards and paddlers. 
Coordinated by Jason Evans.

• The Port to Pub – two IRB 
drivers and crew, twelve rescue 
boards and paddlers. 
Coordinated by Patrick 
Anderson Loake.

• The Nipper Marathon – two IRB 
drivers and crew.

• The Swim the Swan – two IRB 
drivers and crew, ten rescue 
boards, two senior first aiders. 
Coordinated by John Guilfoyle.

• Avoca Surf Club – one IRB plus 
crew for service during the 
Aussie Championships.

• The Aussie Championships – 
two IRBs, two crew for each of 
the three shifts every day for 
eight days.

Our last and most important 
challenge was to replace and 
refurbish equipment. A complete 
audit of all the club equipment was 
conducted. A work schedule was 
prepared for the repair, maintenance 
and replacement of equipment. 
This work was commenced 
immediately by Mark Anderson, 
Eddie Gibbs, Muz Hughes, Chris 
Murphy, Phil Green, Arthur Bajada, 
Tim Speer, Mike Lowry, Helen 
Loake, Daniel Scott, Natalie Speer 
and Janelle Slattery. The new 
equipment was funded by the 
SLSA Beach Safe Equipment Grant, 
an SLSWA grant, and additional 
funding from the club.

Training equipment has also been 
completely updated, the cost of 
which was partly covered by a 
grant from the Stronger Community 
Program. The application was 
enthusiastically supported by our 
federal member, the Honourable 
Julie Bishop. Furthermore, due to 
the significant work done by Natalie 
Speer, the first aid room is now in 
state-of-the-art condition.

I am pleased to announce that two 
of our patrolling members, Club 
Captain Gabrielle Murphy and 
Max Anderson Loake are finalists 
in the annual Cambridge Council 
Volunteer of the Year awards.

It was a great year and my sincere 
thanks to all of you, especially 
members of the Beach committee 
who assisted me in making the 
beach operations run so smoothly.

John Guilfoyle 
Director of Beach Operations

BEACH OPERATIONS REPORT
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Youth members played a significant 
role in assisting with the Nipper 
registration day, the Triple S Ski 
Series, Nipper water safety, external 
event water safety such as the Port 
to Pub, the Swan River Open Water 
swim and volunteering at the First 
Aid State Championships.

Early in the season, the City of 
Perth Surf Life Saving Club hosted 
a friendly inter club carnival with 
Floreat Surf Life Saving Club. Many 
aspects of surf lifesaving were 
tested including March Past and 
Champion Lifesaver.

As the season progressed, a number 
of events opened the Youth up to 
new experiences and opportunities. 
A Wellness Day was organised with 
Chris Harris from Youth Focus who 
came to talk to the Youth. We were 
proud to have the City of Perth Surf 
Life Saving Club’s major sponsor 
Maxima involved in this day, as well 
as local businesses that provided 
healthy options for the Youth to 
try. ‘Have a Go’ days continued and 
Youth members had a chance to 
try surf boats, IRBs and surf skis. 
Furthermore, WA Beach Handball 
players and Australian coaches 
visited us twice at City to show  
the Youth, parents and other  
club members how to play this 
popular sport.

City of Perth Surf Life Saving Club 
was also yet again proud to host 
the Inclusion Day. It was a fantastic 
Sunday morning with City of Perth 
SLSC Youth showing students from 
Balga Senior High School, who have 
recently arrived in Australia, many 
aspects of the surf club including 
beach safety, patrol activities, first 
aid and Nipper activities.

The Youth continued to have many 
successes in carnivals competing in 
local and country carnivals, the Surf 
League series, the States and the 
Aussies. Five Youth members were 
announced as part of the Western 
Suns Development Squad: Alex 
Slocombe (U14); Imogen Herrington 
(U14); Mia Fraser (U15); Sophie 
Lloyd (U17) and Ethan Jackson 
(U17). Matt Colliss was selected in 
the Western Suns Interstate Team.

Four members of the Youth were 
selected to attend the Rise Up and 
TOAD camps in January, they were: 
Michael Ammann (U17); Ayesha 
Razvi (U14); Nicole Ammann (U14) 
and Tom Noordzy (U15).

Congratulations to Mia Fraser (U15) 
who was awarded the SLSWA Youth 
Club Achiever Award for City of 
Perth SLSC. Also, congratulations 
to Ingrid Smith for being nominated 
for the Awards of Excellence Young 
Achiever of the Year. Winners were 
announced on Saturday 9 June, 
2018 at Crown Perth.

Many U14s and U15s obtained their 
SRC and U17s were successful 
in their Bronze Medallion 
qualifications. These qualifications 
are a major focus for the youth 
program and a platform for greater 
involvement within the club.

During the season, the Youth 
Involvement Programme (YIPS) 
provided an additional focus for 
U14s, U15s and U17s. It was great to 
see that this season many members, 
both new and old to the club, were 
working towards their YIPs points. 
These achievements are recognised 
at the Youth Awards ceremony at 
the end of the season at the  
club rooms.

Special congratulations to the 
finalists and winners of the Club 
Youth Awards this season.

U15 –  Zai McCabe, Ayesha Razvi, 
Imogen Herrington, Alex 
Slocombe, Mia Fraser, Tom 
Noordzy and Amberley 
Parker. 
Winner – Alex Slocombe

U17 –  Romi Lawlor, Michael 
Amman, Matt Colliss, Paige 
Bajada, Ethan Jackson and 
Isabel Vaillancourt. 
Winner – Ethan Jackson

U19 –  Georgia Williams, Ingrid 
Smith, Isabella Walker, Tom 
Gallagher, Riley Walker, Max 
Anderson Loake, George 
West, Harry Osbourne and 
Laura Gilman. 
Winner – Ingrid Smith

Thanks to the Youth subcommittee 
that consists of Linda Jackson, 
Michelle Ireland, Michael Jorgenson, 
Heath McCabe, Hadyn Jackson, 
Mirella Tarulli, Richelle Baker, 
Jo De Marchi and Farook Razvi.

Thanks for a great season.

Angela Razvi
Director of Youth

The City of Perth Surf Life Saving 
Club Youth had a full season with 
a large amount of involvement 
and success in many areas across 
the club. There were eighty Youth 
signed up for the 2017/18 season 
which was an increase of 16% from 
the previous year.

YOUTH 
REPORT
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The 2017/18 season has been an 
extremely challenging but rewarding 
experience for me in my first year 
as Junior Director. A massive thank 
you must go out to Alison Smith 
who stepped aside as junior director 
at the end of the 2016/17 season. 
Alison has continued to support the 
City Nippers throughout the 2017/18 
season as part of the newly formed 
Nipper Committee.

When I decided to take on the role 
of Junior Director I had three very 
clear objectives that I wanted to 
achieve this year.

1. First and foremost was the 
 formation a Nipper 
 Subcommittee. 
2. To give every Nipper member a 
 sense of social belonging to the 
 Surf Club and to build on our 
 ‘One Club, One Community’ 
 ethos. 
3. To actively encourage an 
 increased participation in surf 
 sports.

I am very proud of the fact that 
throughout the course of the year 
the Nipper Committee has been 
able to achieve these objectives. 
This has only been possible 
because of the support, hard  
work, passion and dedication of  
so many people.

The winter of 2017 saw the 
formation of the Nipper Committee. 
September saw our first Nipper 
Registration day in our new club 
rooms. Complete with a magician! It 
was a great afternoon, the kids (and 
the grown-ups) had an absolute 
blast. Nipper Sundays kicked off 
in late October and as always 
were held in a safe, fun and happy 
environment, even the weather 
seemed to come to the party  
this year!

Our Nipper competitive ranks 
have been on a decline over the 
last couple of years, so this was 
an area that we were very keen 
to address. Actions were put into 
place over the winter months to 
encourage and facilitate training in 
both water and beach disciplines 
to turn this around, and wow – 
what a turnaround it was! Our 
results at the 2017/18 State Nipper 
Championship were way beyond 
expectation. Not only did we 
increase our competitor numbers 
significantly, but the number of 
outstanding performances from our 
competitors showed what a positive 
impact our coaches and training 
programs were having on our 
Nippers. At the 2017/18 State Nipper 
Championship held at Scarborough 
Beach in March, our City of Perth 
Nippers came 2nd overall (up 
from 6th in 2017) and 2nd in the 
Handicap points (up from 16th in 
2017). A special mention to Elinor 
Webster who was awarded a SLSWA 
Junior Club Achiever Award for her 
outstanding club contributions in 
the areas of lifesaving, education 
and sport.

For the 2017/18 season SLSWA also 
introduced the “Little Nippers” Surf 
Carnivals for the Under 8 and Under 
9 Nippers, as a fun way to introduce 
surf sports to these younger age 
groups. These competitions were 
a massive success, with some of 
our youngest City nippers frothing 
at the chance to show us their 
competitive spirit.

The other competitive highlights for 
the 2017/18 season were:

• The City Nippers’ first venture 
into the Pool Rescue Series. 
A small but dedicated group of 
nippers competed in 3 rounds of 
competitions plus the Pool 
Rescue State Championships 
held at HBF stadium in July.

• The State Endurance 
Championships were held at 
Trigg in November and for the 
first time included 2 Nipper 
events. The U11-13 2km Beach 
Run & U11-13 Ironman Event. 
Our City Nippers were well 
represented in both events and 
showed great surf skills and 
determination in what was very 
challenging conditions.

• The resurrection of ‘Jacko Day’. 
City invited the Scarborough 
‘Urchins’ down to City Beach 
in late November to compete 
for the converted ‘Jacko Day 
Foamy’ Trophy.

• The Nipper Training Camp held 
in the first week of the summer 
school holidays was another 
great success.

• The Nipper Coaching Clinic. A 
big thank you to Linda Walker 
our Surf Sport Director, for 
organising the senior coaches 
and competitors who gave 
up their time to pass on their 
expertise to the next generation 
of champions.

A massive thank you to Karin who 
took up the role as the Nipper 
representative on the Surf Sports 
Committee as well as Coaching 
Coordinator. To all the coaches 
who put their hand up, gave up 
their time and shared their wisdom, 
thank you. Thanks also to all the 
Age Managers who have supported 
and encouraged their kids to get 
involved and have a go!

JUNIOR ACTIVITIES REPORT

City of Perth’s Masters section 
had a good season in 2017-18. 
We started the season with goals 
of running one Masters-specific 
training session a week, getting 
Masters competing in five carnivals, 
and to involve more club members 
in Masters surf sports.

We never ran the Masters-specific 
sessions, but the revamp of 
club training sessions and the 
publication of the training calendar 
meant that Masters have been 
able to access some of the other 
sessions the club runs. We had 
Masters competing in their age 
groups in the State Endurance 
Champs in November, in Masters 
States and in Masters Aussies. 
Additionally, several of our Masters 
competed in the open division at 
the Country Carnival, the Teams 
Carnival in February, and the last 
senior carnival of the year in March, 
the first two of which we had 
targeted as suitable carnivals for 
Masters to be involved in. We had 
a few Masters represent the club 
in the inaugural WA Surf League 
series, throughout the season in the 
WA Surf Rowers League, and at the 
Open States and Aussies carnivals.

Great pleasure was taken in 
welcoming a few club members to 
competition for the first time this 
season, showing it’s never too late 
to learn some new skills and have 
fun doing it. Our hats are off to 
those of you who took the step this 
year and represented the club with 
pride. We very much appreciated 
those who compete year after year 
– it’s so important to have that core 
body to provide continuity and 
help the rookies out. It was also 
awesome to see those that returned 
to competition for the first time in a 
number of years.

Many of our Masters competitors 
take on extra duties in the club, be 
it coaching, on committees, or as 
officials. Thanks to all who gave up 
their time to help out throughout 
the season. Big thanks to Linda 
Walker who supported the Masters 
section all season, and the IRB 
team who filled rosters at Masters 
carnivals so we could compete.

We had a small but quality team 
competing at both Masters States 
and Aussies, and punched well 
above our weight. Not only did 
individuals and teams achieve 
some outstanding results, but we 
introduced new competitors to the 
sport, had a fun time, and thrived 
being part of the City Masters 
team. We hope that all those that 
competed can get the word out to 
friends and family, so we can have 
an even larger team next season.

Emily Chetwin and Adrian Hirsch
Masters Surf Sports Coordinators

MASTERS REPORT
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SURF SPORTS REPORT

SURF SPORTS REPORT CONT...

Our club’s competitors continue 
to compete in a diverse range of 
surf sport disciplines, which was 
our key objective for the 2018/19 
competition season. We celebrate 
all competitors’ achievements and 
strive to continue to enhance and 
develop all arenas for the new 
season ahead.

The season started in July of 2017 
with a complete restructuring of 
surf sports. The main focus was to 
make training opportunities more 
inclusive for all of our competitors 
and members. Through workshops, 
committees and meetings we 
implemented the following  
focus points:

1. Single focused discipline 
training only

2. Defined and easy access single 
discipline training timetable

3. Coach allocation to single 
discipline training with contact 
details

4. Timetable on quick link icon on 
the front page of the website

5. Encourage all competitors to 
come to training per level  
of ability

6. Long term increase in 
competitor entries for senior 
carnivals based on easy access 
single discipline training options

7. More inclusivity for all club 
members at all training sessions

8. All coaches to be accredited and 
qualified under SLA guidelines.

9. All coaches to have a WWC
10. Senior helping nipper days
11. Pathways for competitors and 

coaches – ongoing
12. Target most arenas that need 

more competitors – ongoing

Throughout the season, the 
competitors of City of Perth 
have performed exemplarily at a 
number of carnivals. It is worth 
acknowledging these results.

COMPETITION RESULTS 
2017/18 Endurance Championships
The club achieved some excellent 
results at the endurance 
championships that were held 
at Trigg in November 2017. The 
medallists for this event are listed 
on page 40.

2017/18 Inaugural Boat State 
Sprint Championships
City of Perth took out the overall 
points, nudging out North Cottesloe 
to win the Championship trophy 
in the inaugural Boat State Sprint 
Championships at Secret Harbour. 
Ten City crews competed at the 
event with notable achievements.

2017/18 IRB Winter Series
Phil Green, Arthur Bajada, John 
Davies and the IRB leadership team 
have worked very hard for the last 
three years to coach and finally 
enter an IRB team for City. The club 
has been assisted with IRB coaches 
from Floreat (Gavin) & Mullaloo 
(Cameron). The event took place in 
May, Harry Osbourne was the IRB 
driver and had a city crew. The surf 
sports committee have placed this 
event on its wish list for the last 
three years, so congratulations and 
we hope to see more crews enter 
next season.

2017/18 Belt Race State 
Championships 
The 2017/18 WA belt race 
championships were held at 
Sorrento SLSC. Tom Gallagher went 
back-to-back to become the state 
champion in both the Open and 
U19 Belt Race. Isabella Walker also 
achieved silver in the U19 Female.

2017/18 Champion Lifesaver State 
Championships 
The event, held at Swanbourne, was 
again a successful one for our club’s 
one competitor. Talia Jakubans won 
gold in the open event.

2017/18 First Aid State 
Championships 
The 2017/18 First Aid State 
Championships were held at City 
this year. Our new young gun 
City Coach Katie Schutze has 
produced some amazing results. 
Open gold went to Katie Schutze 
and Catherine Burke, and silver to 
Nathan Scott and Ingrid Smith.

2017/18 Youth State 
Championships 
In the youth, there were individual 
event stand-out multi-medallists in 
Mia Fraser, Imogen Herrington and 
Alex Slocombe. There were also 
team event medals in the Under 15 
beach relay, the Cameron relay and 
the board rescue.

2017/18 Pool Rescue State 
Championships 
In July 2017, our competitors 
performed well in the pool rescue 
championships. Isabella Walker won 
three gold and one bronze, Madison 
Howe won three gold and three 
silver, Jack Retty won one gold, and 
Thomas Noordzy won one silver and 
two bronze.

2017/18 Masters State 
Championships 
Highlights include, but are not 
limited to, the following great 
competitors who competed at 
Sorrento Beach for the Masters 
State Championships:

• The City Black Boat Crew
• Mike Darragh, Joanna Kagi, 

and Martyn Cavanagh who all 
competed in beach events

• Angela Razvi, Trish Gilbert, Em 
Chetwin, Kelvin Bishop, Graham 
Wimbridge, David Caley, Adrian 
Hirsch, Gordon Jones and Glenn 
Boddy who all competed in 
water events

2017/18 State Championship 
Weekend 
City competed at Scarborough 
beach for the two-day event as part 
of the 2017/18 State Championships 
in March 2018 and finished in 
second place. SLSWA also combine 
points from the two-day State 
Championships with points from all 
the State Championship events held 
previously over the season. In this 
tally, City of Perth finished in 4th 
place – an excellent result. Some of 
the outstanding highlights of the 
weekend include:

• Second, third and fifth 
placements in the Lifesaver 
relay.

• Jade Mickle winning every 
individual Open female water 
event.

• Tom Gallagher achieving gold 
for the Open & U19 age groups 
in both the Ironman and Belt 
Races, and achieving nine gold, 
five silver & two bronze medals.

• Gabby Murphy winning gold in 
both the open sprint and flags.

• Achieving gold in the U15 and 
open beach sprint relays.

• City Red boat crew winning 
gold, and City Red, Sirens and 
Werewolves all medalling.

• March Past achieving bronze.

On the social front, September saw 
the inaugural ‘Race Around City’ 
team building event for the U12, 
U13, U14 & U15’s. Thank you again 
to Karin Hunt for organising and 
running this event. December saw 
our first ‘Nipper Disco’ in the new 
club rooms. DJ Andy was spinning 
the discs and whipping the kids 
up into a disco frenzy! A massive 
shout out to Tina Moore and the 
rest of the Nipper Social Committee 
for organising such a great event. 
The introduction of the Players 
Teas before carnivals this year has 
been a way of building a great team 
spirit. We finished off the season 
in style with our Presentation 
Evening where we celebrated 
by acknowledging our Nipper 
Champions.

To all my Age Managers, Assistants 
and Nipper Committee members, 
your support, guidance and 
encouragement has been invaluable. 
A massive thank you to you all. A 
special mention to Ben Rogers who 
was our Nipper representative on 
the Beach Committee.

To John Guilfoyle and the rest 
of the Beach Committee, the IRB 
crews, Water Safety, BBQ Crew, and 
all the parents who kindly assist 
every Sunday, we really appreciate 
your time and help. None of this 
would be possible if it weren’t for 
the many helpers who ensure that 
Sunday mornings run so smoothly.

To everyone that has contributed 
this year, thank you! Your efforts, 
however large or small, have been 
greatly appreciated.

Together we have achieved so much 
this season, but there is still plenty 
of work to do. I look forward to the 
good times and challenges of the 
year ahead.

Andrew Young 
Director of Junior Activities

Event Crew Result
Open Women City Senyoritas 1st
Open Men City Werewolves 3rd
Reserve Women City Sirens 2nd
Reserve Men City Black 1st
Reserve Men City Phantoms 3rd
U19 Women City Itty Bitty Committee 1st

2017/18 INAUGURAL BOAT STATE SPRINT CHAMPIONSHIPS

JUNIOR ACTIVITIES REPORT CONT...
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The lifesaver relay is a testament 
to a club’s strength across all 
disciplines. A lifesaver relay team 
must consist of at least four 
females, one U17, and one U19. 
The event begins with the boat 
crew, which is followed by one 
competitor each completing a board 
race, ski race, surf swim race and 
sprint run to finish. City entered 
three teams and finished with silver, 
bronze and fifth placements, which 
was certainly a club highlight for 
the weekend. The event began 
with massive swell and a heart-
stopping boat race which had the 
crowd waiting in anticipation for 
the waves to subside and allow the 
boat crews to attempt to return 
to shore. Most crews waited, but 
the City Werewolves showed their 
experience and were the only crew 
to make their move, securing a 
massive lead for the rest of their 
team comprised of female water 
competitors who drove the team 
home to a bronze medal. Huge 
wave drifts and undercurrents for 
the swim, board and ski events 
continued to be challenging. Our 
success in this event demonstrates 
the true depth of the competitors in 
our senior club.

In the female water arena, sixteen 
competitors comprising of opens, 
masters, U19s and U17s showed 
great club spirit, leadership and 
a sense of one team. Three open 
surf teams entered and achieved 
results of gold, bronze and fourth, 
and we were also able to field four 
open Taplin teams. Our Under 17 
girls Kalani Scott, Romi Lawlor 
and Sophie Lloyd had outstanding 
individual and team results in 

multiple age groups. Without our 
Masters ladies – Tricia Gilbert, 
Nicky Scott, Em Chetwin and 
Sharan Colliss – our team events 
would have been very limited. 
Championship gold, silver and 
bronze placings were achieved by 
individual and team events for all of 
the 16 competitors.

In the male water arena, excellent 
results were achieved across a 
range of age groups. The under 
17 boys, Matt Colliss and Ethan 
Jackson, achieved individual and 
team medals as well as aging up 
for many team events. In the under 
19s, Tom Gallagher, Max Anderson 
Loake and Riley Walker showed 
dominance in both Under 19 and 
Open events. In the opens, Simon 
Huitenga achieved gold in the 
open and restricted surf race and 
silver in the Ironman. Ben Carrick, 
Jack Retty, Simon Huitenga, Andy 
Donaldson, Jason Evans, and Justin 
Miles achieved silver and bronze 
placements in the surf teams and 
were able to enter three teams 
for the open Taplin. This is to just 
name a few of the multi-medal 
winning individuals and teams that 
contributed to City’s point score. 
These open men are also showing 
great leadership and mentoring to 
the City young guns.

On the beach, three open female 
relay teams achieved gold, bronze, 
and 6th placements. In the 2km 
Beach Run event, there were 
five representatives in Andrew 
Walker, Paddy Upton-Davis, Amy 
Murphy, Craig Hutchison and Sam 
McGovern. Craig finished sixth in 
the open event and Sam won silver 
in the Under 19s.

We are once again very proud that 
City of Perth SLSC is continuing 
to be represented at the State 
Championships in the March Past. 
Some new younger team members 
have enhanced this well-rounded 
female team to finish in third place 
this year. Well done Ian Scott  
and team.

In the boats, this season Mal 
Lowther and Rebecca Boyanich 
have managed the ten competition 
crews. The day’s challenging, huge 
waves and swell conditions proved 
that our sweeps are professional, 
experienced and safety conscious 
for every one of their crews, and 
this was the highlight for me as  
the Director of Surf Sports. The 
crews won two medals in the 
lifesaver relay, City Red won gold 
and there was a silver each for  
City Werewolves, City Sirens and  
City Black.

A full list of State Championship 
medallists is available on page 42.

2017/18 Australian Championships
The City of Perth contingent 
performed admirably at the 
Australian Titles. Rob Walker 
discusses the highlights in his 
report as the Aussies team 
manager. In addition, a full list of 
Australian Championship medallists 
is available on page 39.

2017/18 Pool Rescue 
Championships
The 2017/18 Pool Rescue 
Championships were held in 
Adelaide from the 4th to the 6th 
of August in 2017. Our competitors 
produced some outstanding results.

Other Events
Members have also represented 
the club in a variety of other high-
profile events.
Madison Howe competed at the 
Australian Youth Lifesaving Team 
SLSA for Pool Rescue.

Jade Mickle and Tom Gallagher 
competed in the Ocean 6 series. 
The Summer of Surf Series held 

these events over 3 months in QLD, 
NSW and VIC starting in October 
and finishing in January.

Other events include the Avon 
Descent, boat events, the Anaconda 
Adventure Race, the Rottnest 
Channel Swim with Heidi Gan being 
the first individual female and 
setting a course record, Open Water 
Swimming, Surf Lifesaving carnivals 
at Torquay, Fairhaven, Manly and 
Freshwater, the Sunset Surf Ski 
Series, boat events, the Athletics 
WA State Championships, Royal 
Lifesaving & Invitation Belt races.

A City versus Trigg water interclub 
event was held at City. Thanks to 
Jack Retty and Andrew Walker who 
were our liaisons with Trigg, as well 
as Kelvin Bishop, the IRBs, Linda, 
Tanya and Mark Anderson.

VOLUNTEERS
The Surf Sports Committee 
This season our surf sports 
structure has been changed. 
We have implemented single 
discipline training programs and 
a new timetable. This was a year 
of making some changes to how 
we communicate with our coaches 
and managers as our Surf Sports 
competitor numbers continue to 
grow. I have identified that we now 
need to be more active with our 
communication and processes in 
each arena. This has been achieved 
by developing a surf sports 
committee and module that helped 
us select a dedicated representative 
for each arena/discipline that would 
attend monthly meetings and 
perform action items for their arena. 
The objective of this committee is 
as follows:

1. Grow all disciplines of surf 
sports in our club.

2. Collaborate and share 
information.

3. Share information to all coaches/
sweeps and competitors.

4. Have representatives to 
action their arena/disciplines 
own entries, administration 
duties, competition rosters 

and be the first point of 
contact. For example, beach 
competitors enter via the beach 
representative for beach events.

I wish to thank our representatives 
for their outstanding contribution to 
Surf Sports this season.

Water Arena U14 Open – Tanya 
Andrew
Pool Rescue – Jack Retty & Andrew 
Walker
Surfing – Jack Retty (Surf Sports 
Officer)
March Past and R & R – Ian Scott
R & R – Farook Razvi
First Aid – Katie Schutze
Boats – Rebecca Boyanich
Beach – Chris Murphy
U14/15 – Michelle Ireland
IRB – Carl Wheeler
Masters –  Emily Chetwin and 
Adrian Hirsch
Assistant Surf Sports – Ben Carrick

As the Surf Sports Committee, some 
of our goals for the 2018/19 season 
include:

• More active competitors in  
the beach, lifesaving and  
water arenas.

• Enhance single discipline 
training options for all club 
members. Have a training 
program accessible via quick 
links on the website.

• Train and mentor coaches for 
Mini Mals, Mals, R & R, Skis, First 
Aid and Champion Lifesaver.

• Pathway KPIs
• Define roles of the head coach 

and single discipline coach
• Continued implementation 

of minimum level 1 coaching 
qualifications and Working With 
Children check for our coaches.

• Champion Patrol Team, R & R, 
Champion Lifesaver entries for 
States and Aussies in 2019.

• Increase entries for States and 
Aussies Masters, Youth and 
Open for 2019.

• Implement subcommittees in 
each arena/discipline to help 
with tasks.

• The nippers to seniors transition 
– retaining competitors from 
U10 upwards.

• Development of a new position 
in our club as a Nipper Surf 
Sports Officer to join the Surf 
Sport Committee.

• Continue to have senior 
competitors mentoring nippers 
at the nipper water clinic and 
Sunday nipper mornings.

Other volunteers 
The Surf League, Senior carnivals, 
State and Australian Championships 
involve a number of people who 
volunteer their time in a variety of 
ways. On behalf of the club, sincere 
thanks must go to a number  
of people:

All the members who assisted as 
competition officials throughout the 
season in all arenas. Special thanks 
to Chris Murphy, Pam Murphy, 
Penny Cohen, Robbie Somerford, 
Lea Anderson, Matthew Slattery, 
Kaylene Bozich, Mark Anderson, 
Helen Loake, Kelvin Bishop, Ian 
Scott, Jane Scott, Mark Holland, 
Gordon Jones, Tina Runnion, Sonya 
Reid, Rik Lovett, Brett Wakefield, 
Natalie Law, Peter Waey and  
Jane Hewitt.

All the members who assisted 
throughout the season with 
competition, coffee runs, training 
breakfasts, morning teas, pep 
talks, water safety and first aid at 
carnivals. Also, all the competitors 
and family members who helped us 
host four events at City this season 
to raise money for our club. In 
particular, Debbie Wagstaff for 
her work as the fundraising water 
safety coordinator.

Competitor Age Group Event Results
Madison Howe U17 Female Gold       200m Obstacle Race 

Gold       50m Manikin carry 
Gold       100m Manikin carry w/fins 
Gold       50 Swim w/fins 
Silver     100m Rescue Medley 
Bronze   200m Super Lifesaver

Isabella Walker U19 Female Bronze   200m Super Lifesaver

2017/18 POOL RESCUE CHAMPIONSHIPS
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The Arena Managers at carnivals, 
States and Aussies. These include 
Linda Walker, Christine Darragh, 
Cimon Albertsen, Jack Retty, 
Janelle Slattery, Adrian Hirsch, 
Michelle Ireland, Michael Jorgensen, 
Leigh Buchan, Chris Murphy, Mal 
Lowther, Ian Scott, Linda Jackson, 
Sharan Colliss, Nicky Scott and 
Emily Chetwin.

Phil Green and his leadership 
team for their IRB support at away 
carnivals, as well as their ongoing 
commitment to help surf sports. 
The drivers and team leaders 
included Mike Lowry, John Davies, 
Carl Wheeler, Arthur Bajada, Tim 
Speer and Brett Wakefield. The crew 
included Harry Osbourne, Ingrid 
Smith and Isabella Bynevelt.

The photographers led by Tanya 
Andrew and Farook Razvi. The 
never-ending support and efforts 
provided by Eddie Gibbs, Kelvin 
Bishop and Murray Hughes. Thanks 
must also go to Brigitte Schuhkraft, 
Susan Carrick, Denise Scott, Helen 
Loake, Geoff Wilson, Angela Razvi 
and Ian Scott, as well as the office 
consisting of Kylie, Sophie, Rachael, 
Narelle and Paddy.

Rob Walker for his commitment 
as the Aussies Team Manager. In 
addition, the Cert 2 administration 
and trainer team which includes 
Tanya Andrew, John Guilfoyle and 
Matthew Slattery.

The Coaches 
Our club could not produce such 
a calibre of competitors without 
our volunteer coaches. Our 
coaches have committed to train 
competitors during the transition 
from our old club rooms to our 
new ones, and with that has come 
a limited budget for surf sports 
competition for the season. We 
thank you for your persistence and 
support of our budget restraints.

• Water coaches: Rick Turner, 
Andrew Walker, Ben Carrick, 
Mark Stewart & Jack Retty.

• Beach coaches: Leigh Buchan, 
Brett Slocombe, Meaghan 
Slattery & Emily Slattery.

• March Past and R & R: Ian Scott.
• R & R: Farook Razvi.
• First Aid: Katie Schutze.
• Boats sweeps: Mal Lowther, 

John Leivers, Geoff Wilson, 
Bruce Lilburne, Peter Waey, 
Steve Bowler, Bob Harper, 
John Gilbody and Chris 
Lebesmuehlbacher.

Personally, I wish to thank my 
family, Wal and Isabella for their 
help and year-long support. Thanks 
to Jack Retty, a competitor and 
coach who has the major role of 
Surf Sports officer. Ben Carrick, 
again a competitor and coach, filled 
the role of Assistant Surf Sport 
officer which, along with me, formed 
the Leadership team for the Surf 
Sports 2017/18 season. Thanks also 
to Tanya Andrew for her never-
ending assistance with all tasks in 
any discipline of surf sports, and 
to Stephen Carrick for his words 
of wisdom and advice. Thanks to 
the club’s coaches, Surf Sports 
committee, Executive and Beach 
committees for their continuous 
support of our valued surf sports 
competitors and supporting 
families.

Linda Walker
Director of Surf Sports

SURF SPORTS REPORT CONT... SURF LEAGUE REPORT CONT...

SURF LEAGUE REPORT

Round 2 of the Surf League kicked 
off with ideal conditions on Sunday 
7 January at our very own City 
Beach. Competitors were met with 
blue skies and the ocean offering 
small, consistent surf. City was out 
to steal the mantle of champion 
club after falling agonisingly short 
to North Cottesloe in Round 1.

Once again City had three teams 
entered (Red, Black and White), 
highlighting the Club’s strength 
across all disciplines of surf sports. 
After missing the win by the 
smallest of margins in Round 1, City 
Red had a resounding win over the 
second placed Trigg Island who 
trailed us at the end of the day by 
a considerable margin of 18 points. 
Rounding off the podium in third 
was the City Black team in what was 
another hugely successful day.

Sorrento beach was buzzing with 
energy for the third and final round 
of WA Surf League. Clear skies 
again and light westerly winds gave 
the usually flat Sorrento waters a 
slight wind chop which athletes 
could use to their advantage in the 
water events.

With City of Perth and North 
Cottesloe tied on one Surf League 
round victory each, bragging rights 
were up for grabs and City of Perth 
teams Red, Yellow and White rose 
to the occasion. City of Perth Red 
came through to take out the top 
honours for the day (75 points), 
beating their fellow athletes from 
City of Perth Yellow (60 points), and 
Trigg Island Red rounding out the 
top three (57 points). Across the 
three rounds an amazing $12,000 
was won by the club – a superb 
effort by the 60+ athletes who 
fronted up for the Club each round.

The overall series winners of each 
discipline earned a spot in the 
Western Suns Open Elite Team 
that travelled to the final round 
of the professional Ocean 6 
series at North Cronulla on 24 & 
25 February. These competitors 
are to be congratulated for their 
dominant performances in finishing 
first across WA in their chosen 
disciplines: Tom Gallagher (Board 
Race), Jade Mickle (Iron Women, 
Surf & Board Races) & Gabrielle 
Murphy (Beach Sprint & Flags).

City of Perth can be extremely 
proud of the results achieved by 
its athletes across the Surf League 
series. It is a tribute to the City club 
spirit and our excellence across 
all disciplines. Bring on next year! 
Commendations must go to Ben 
Carrick, Jack Retty and Andrew 
Walker for their coordination of 
teams for the surf league series.

Ben Carrick
Assistant Surf Sports Officer

The 2017/18 season saw SLSWA 
introduce a new club-based format 
of racing, aptly named ‘Surf League’. 
The competition aimed to promote 
surf sports in a fast-paced racing 
programme designed to showcase 
a club’s strength across beach, 
boat and ocean disciplines. Each 
team was required to have one male 
and female competitor take part in 
each of the following events: boat, 
sprint, flag, swim, board, ski and 
Ironman/woman. With the inclusion 
of a strategic ‘opt-out’ for each 
team from one male and female 

event across the program, the event 
promised to be both strategically 
exciting and spectator-friendly.

The stakes were high with cash 
prizes up for grabs for the top 
three clubs in each round, as well 
as potential Western Suns team 
selection and travel subsidies for 
the top individual competitors and 
boat crews.

Sunday the 3rd of December saw 
Round One of the Surf League 
descend on a hot and flat North 
Cottesloe Beach. City showed its 
strength across all disciplines by 
entering three teams (X, Y and Z). In 
the final points score, City Team X 
fell tantalisingly short of first place 
by a single point! Interestingly, City 
Y was awarded 3rd place on the day, 
but a count back saw Trigg leap-
frog them into third. The good news 
was that we kept the money – a 
fantastic start for City as it saw us 
take home a combined $3,000.
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LIFE SAVING REPORT LIFE SAVING REPORT CONT...

CLUB SWIM REPORT

A high retention rate from last year 
allowed us to commence the season 
with over 210 patrolling members. 
This number grew throughout the 
season as Bronze and SRC courses 
were completed and new patrolling 
members joined the ranks. Once 
again, the patrolling contingent 
proved very committed and no-
shows were rare. This is due to two 
reasons, firstly, the success of the 
patrol proxy page, and secondly, 
an understanding among members 
that our patrolling commitments 
have to be met. Thank you for 
your diligence and perseverance in 
finding proxies, I think it is fantastic 
that a club culture now exists 
that understands the importance 
of patrols. Members undertook 
not only their rostered patrol 
commitments, but also volunteered 
to do many extra hours of water 
safety and first aid duties at events 
including Surf League Carnivals, 
SunSmart Senior Carnivals and 
Open Water Swims.

Due to a change in the Lifesaving 
Agreement, patrols started a month 
later than in previous years and 
consequently the club was not 
patrolling the beach until after the 
nippers took to the sand in late 
October. Whilst this may not have 
been optimal, the patrol captains 
and members adjusted well. Finally, 
on the 4th of November, the first 
scheduled patrol of the season 
began as the patrol captained by 
Bridget Darragh (Patrol 19) brushed 
off the rescue boards and pulled 
the patrol shelter into position. 
From then, the club patrolled every 
weekend and public holiday until 
the end of April, well after the club’s 
beach activities had finished.

This year, the IRBs once again did 
a fantastic job of supporting the 
patrols. By the end of the season, 
we had half of the patrols with an 
operational IRB. This is no mean 
feat, and a big thank you must go to 
all of the IRB team. The effort was 
led by Tim Speer, Arthur Bajada and 
Mike Lowry, who steered their team 
professionally and calmly while 

gathering numbers and momentum. 
The importance of the IRBs was 
once again highlighted over the 
States weekend when ex-Tropical 
Cyclone Marcus bought some 
extremely testing conditions to 
our beach. The IRBs were on hand 
to support the voluntary patrol 
teams that day when a total of 13 
rescues took place. The team which 
volunteered that morning were 
nominated by the club for  
the SLSWA Rescue of the Month, 
well done.

A Patrol App developed by Surf Life 
Saving Australia was rolled out to 
Western Australian clubs in mid-
January. The benefits of this app 
are three-fold. Firstly, it facilitates 
more accurate reporting, secondly, 
it reduces office administration, 
and thirdly, it will allow patrols to 
become close to paperless. As an 
institution that revolves so much 
around the natural environment, 
I believe that this is an important 
initiative. It is apparent that the  
club needs to have a designated 
device for patrols to use the  
app effectively. The club should 
have one in place at the start of 
next season.

The Patrol Competition in March 
was a great success, but not as we 
intended! It was enjoyed by everyone 
involved, mainly an enthusiastic 
youth group that competed as 
three teams. There were three main 
components: rescues and carries, a 
theory multiple-choice paper, and 
practical first aid games. We had 
hoped that the Patrol Competition, 
together with the patrol equipment 
raids, would provide us with enough 
information to award a Champion 
Patrol Team. However, due to a lack 
of interest from the patrols at a busy 
time of the season, we were unable 
to present this award. Thanks to 
Gabby and Craig who organised this 
event – we will be trying to run this 
competition again, but with some 
adjustments and much earlier in 
the season. Although no award was 
made, all teams are champions in  
my eyes!

Once again, the Best Patrol Member 
was hotly contested and we had 
the difficult job of creating a 
shortlist. Katie Schutze, Christine 
Burke, Gabrielle Murphy and 
Jessica Hallett were all worthy 
finalists but Gabby took out the 
award. As Club Captain, Gabby 
does not have to patrol. However, 
she not only patrols, but also 
provides outstanding leadership 
as the captain of Patrol Team 2 
(J & J Scott). She seems to have 
an endless supply of enthusiasm 
and energy, which she puts to very 
good use in all areas of the club, 
whether it be organising a social 
event, providing patrol support in 
my absence, or sitting on various 
committees. To quote Leigh Buchan, 
“Gabby is low maintenance” – it is 
an enviable quality for someone in 
her position to just be able to get 
on without a fuss. Thanks Gabby, 
you are a gem and a very worthy 
recipient of this award.

In addition to those mentioned 
above I would also like to thank:

• Steve Reynolds and his team 
who carried out the mass 
re-qualifications for all our 
patrolling members.

• Nat Speer who, in her first year 
as First Aid Officer, bought 
some professional knowledge 
to the position and was able to 
attain green whistle approval 
from SLSWA as well as training 
members in its use.

• The office staff who 
meticulously and accurately 
input all the data. In particular, 
Kylie, who is responsible for all 
patrol related support.

• Chris Murphy and Susan 
Carrick, who supported the 
beach committee in their roles 
as non – voting Chairperson and 
Secretary respectively.

• Mark Anderson, for a sterling 
job carrying out repairs to 
equipment, especially the rescue 
boards which seem to be in need 
of constant attention.

There are quite a number of senior 
patrolling members who will be 

The Club continued to host Sunday 
morning club swims throughout the 
2017/18 season. Due to less than 
perfect conditions, we unfortunately 
attracted a fewer numbers of 
participants. Having said this,  
the club swims were still a  
success which can be attributed 
to the invaluable assistance of the 
Beach committee, in particular, 
Gabby Murphy, Jason Evans and 
Craig Hutchison.

A big thanks to Angela Razvi and 
the energetic participation of the 
cadets who assisted with timing and 
recording.

The swim course was supervised 
by the IRB drivers and crews who, 
as always, provided an excellent 
standard of water safety.

John Guilfoyle 
Director of Beach Operations

coming up for long service. Thank 
you for your years of service on 
the beach. Three years ago, this 
scenario would have filled me with 
dread, however, although they 
will be missed, I feel that we have 
sufficient budding leaders for this 
transition to take place seamlessly.

Looking back, we should be 
extremely proud of the progress 
that our patrols have made this 
season. However, looking forward, 
it is vital that we are constantly 
aiming to provide the best and 
safest service to our beach-goers. 

One of my priorities is that we 
should seek to have a higher profile 
at the North end of the beach. We 
need to have equipment available 
to set up a regular outpost, situated 
between Clancy’s and the North 
groyne. This should comprise of an 
easily transportable and erectable 
patrol shelter, as well as a table to 
get the oxygen, defibrillator and 
first aid kit off the sand. We have 
the patrolling members to be able to 
successfully achieve this, hopefully 
there will also be sufficient funding.

That’s another season done and 
dusted! Once again, thanks to all 
the members who patrol and make 
the job as Life Saving Coordinator 
a joy.

Helen Loake 
Life Saving Coordinator
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BEACH ARENA 
REPORT

This season we had individuals and 
relay teams train and compete in the 
U14/15 girls, U19, and open categories. 
Our increased participation was 
evidenced at states where, along with 
representation from Meaghan’s squad, 
the club had three teams in the final 
of the open women’s relay, and for the 
first time in years, an open men’s team 
competing for the club.

Specific results from States and 
Aussies are available elsewhere 
in this report, but there are some 
special results I’d like to mention. 
Club captain Gabrielle Murphy had 
a clean sweep of the Open Women’s 
beach events at states, winning the 
sprint, flags and being a member of 
the winning open beach relay. The 
relay team of Gabby, Alysse Priddis, 
Holly Noack, and Brittany Houghton 
went on to claim a bronze medal at 
Aussies (they also took bronze in 
the 4 x 100m at Athletics WA’s state 
championships). Looking back at 
historical results, the clubs Open 
Women’s beach relay has won this 
event at states every year since 
2013. We have also made all finals 
at Aussies since 2011, gaining one 
1st place, two 2nd places, three 3rd 
places, and two 5th places during that 
time. That’s quite an achievement for 
an event that doesn’t give a second 
chance if a mistake is made.

On another note, it was 
disappointing that a local resident 
saw fit to complain about our 
usage of Jubilee Park to conduct 
running sessions. The park is ideal 
for the club’s needs – located close 
to our club facilities and with a 
nice uphill gradient. We only use a 
small section for two hours once 
a week, so it is a great shame that 
this complaint was made, and 
furthermore that we were prohibited 
from using the area. Hopefully, 
next year, the relevant authorities 
will reconsider.

Finally, a big thank you to Pam and 
Chris Murphy for the endless hours 
they spend on the beach officiating 
so our group can compete. Thanks 
also to Brett Slocombe, Adie 
Hinkes, and Em Slattery for the 
help provided during the season. 
Moving into next season, the goal 
is to continue the general growth 
of the squad and cater for all 
abilities, from those wanting to do 
something different in a fitness 
activity, to those aiming to succeed 
competitively at a national level.

An off-shoot to the amazing City 
Sprint this year was the City Fitness 
Group. This is its first year of 
operation and it won’t be the last. 
We started in the preseason with 
Tuesday sessions that made our 
legs ache, as well as joining Leigh 
Buchan with Sunday sessions on 
the sand dunes.

We came hot off the blocks into the 
new season with our hearts set on 
getting more relay teams on the 
start line at States. The team did 
not disappoint, winning a bronze 
and a sixth at states to complement 
the gold, with some of the fitness 
group’s finest having a crack.

Always inspired by the results of the 
sprinters and Leigh’s squad we will 
continue to endeavour to get more 
runners down to sessions no matter 
their speed, endurance, or fitness. 
City Sprint will have something for 
you no matter what! Bring on the 
next pre-season!

Leigh Buchan & Meaghan Slattery 
Coaches

R & R AND MARCH PAST REPORT

WATER ARENA REPORT

This past season our March Past 
team showed further improvement, 
gaining placings at all inter-club 
carnivals, and a bronze medal at 
the States.

Our overall team marching has lifted 
considerably, but still just lacks the 
overall ‘wow’ factor and consistency 
across all the sections. Nearly there, 
but not quite!

In poor weather conditions the team 
marched at this year’s Scarborough 
Aussies in front of a very large 
group of club supporters, and we 
did put on a good visual show. 
Unfortunately, we had two critical 
lapses within the competition that 
put us well outside the placings. 
Our two rivals Sorrento and Trigg 
placed third and fifth on the day, 
and we should have been up there 
with them.

The team reserves deserve special 
mention for their support at all 
competitions and most importantly, 
the Aussies. The final selection was 
very difficult, and we could have 
marched with an extra back row if 
the rules allowed. Appreciation to 
Peter Scott (Denise’s husband) and 
Farook Razvi for filming the team 
both at training and carnivals; and 
to Chris Murphy and Jane Scott 
as specialist judges in our event 
throughout the season.

We again failed to field U17 or U23 
March Past teams at the States and 
the Aussies. Four other WA clubs 
won medals in these age events, 
and well done to them.

City R & R teams were absent from 
all competitions this season, the 
first time for more than thirty-five 
years. Our coach Farook Razvi 
worked tirelessly every weekend 
during the season trying to 
establish teams for the event, but 
to no avail. With support already 
promised, he will be back trying 
again next year.

Ian Scott 
Coach

Simon Huitenga has shown 
his talent once again, and Tom 
Gallagher that ironmen can still be 
produced in the West. Two of the 
hardest working athletes whose 
performances were commensurate 
with their application.

There have been some significant 
positives this season.

The old ‘Mayne Nic’ carnivals have 
been reinvented as the surf league 
and provide a welcome innovation. 
However, our commendable 
performance in this series, along 
with the subsequent income stream, 
will be in jeopardy next season due 
to the eastern exodus of some of 
our star performers.

Furthermore, kudos to state centre, 
there was a return to a ‘standalone’ 
state premiership where the result is 
not influenced by competition earlier 
in the season. Nonetheless, it was 
good to see both the IRB and pool 
rescue teams representing our club 
proudly through the winter months.

Alongside these positive notes I 
must also present some concerns.

This was one of the weaker Aussies 
fields that I have seen. Straight 
finals or single round qualifiers were 
the order of the day, something that 
we should not get used to.

In addition, we are struggling to 
field numbers in the junior age 
groups. As a club we were unable 
to present a solitary team in the 
premier event of the season, held in 
our own state, in both the under 15s 
and under 17s age groups. However, 
I am pleased to hear of endeavours 
being made to address this.

There is also a serious disconnect 
in the training spectrum. I can 
remember a twelve-year-old 
Jamie Kearsley getting a mouthful 
for arriving late at an afternoon 
swimming session – his excuse 
was he had to fit in his ski session 
beforehand. Jamie went on to 
win the national junior Ironman. 
Coaches don’t advocate these 
extremes but something in the 
middle would be nice.

An envelope is opened at the end 
of Monty Python’s ‘The Meaning 
of Life’, its contents promising an 
answer to the eternal question 
‘What is the meaning of life?’. 
The answer was “try to be nice 
to people, avoid eating fat, read a 
good book now and then, get some 
walking in, listen to your coaches’ 
advice, and train harder.”

Rick Turner 
Coach

The running squad continues 
to build up numbers, both in 
competitive and general fitness 
areas. Meaghan Slattery took 
over the ‘social/fitness’ group 
this season, scheduling regular 
sessions on Tuesdays and 
Thursdays for well over twenty 
participants. This provided an ideal 
opportunity for club members who 
wanted to train and be part of the 
running group without necessarily 
committing to competing.
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2017/18 was another great season 
for the IRB Team with an ever-
increasing number of drivers 
and crew achieving their IRB 
qualifications. Congratulations 
to Carl Wheeler, Kane Suchenia, 
David Scott and Harry Osbourne 
who all qualified as IRB drivers 
while a further fifteen members 
successfully qualified as IRB crew. 
It is pleasing to see several new 
crew now training as drivers and 
we’re looking forward to boosting 
numbers even further.

The demands on the IRB team were 
significant during the season but 
we were able to enthusiastically 
support all the events which came 
our way including the following: 
Nipper Water Safety every Sunday, 
Sunset Ski Series (3 races), Junior 
and Senior Carnivals, Port to Pub 
Open Water Swim, Swan River Swim, 
Junior and Senior State Titles, and 
Aussies Water Safety for City of 
Perth and Noosa Heads.

A special thanks to all those 
members who supported these 
events, especially the Aussies 
which was a huge commitment 
for the club.

During the season we managed to 
sell the old ATV with assistance 
from Chris Murphy and secure a 
new ATV from SLSWA for club use. 
The Club also received the use of 
a wonderful Metro Motors supplied 
Holden Colorado 4WD to support 
patrol and towing requirements 
for the second season running. A 
huge thanks to Metro Motors and 
to all members for looking after this 
vehicle during the season so that 
we can return it to Metro Motors in 
good condition.

We recently commenced training 
for IRB Competition, organised by 
Arthur Bajada and John Davies, 
with assistance from the team at 
Floreat SLSC and Mullaloo SLSC. 
Our youthful and enthusiastic City 
competitors recently participated 
in their first carnival with great 
results, and with some fine tuning 
will be in the mix towards the pointy 
end of this very short season. We 
encourage all members to support 
this group as they undertake the 
clubs first foray into competitive 
IRB in over ten years. Keep an eye 
out for about this in the Club News 
as this unfolds. Good Luck!

The IRB section continues to grow 
and develop in skills and experience. 
This couldn’t be achieved without 
the hard work of our team of IRB 
trainers and assessors so a sincere 
thanks to all those members who 
continue to help with training.

We look forward to seeing as many 
aspiring drivers on the beach as 
possible during the winter. As we 
all know, City Beach is beautiful 
in the summer, but to become an 
experienced IRB driver you need 
to be able to drive during a winter 
north westerly front.

We look forward to winter training 
and to an exciting 2018/19 season, 
and if you’re a Bronze Medallion 
holder looking to expand your skill 
set please come down to the IRB 
shed and we’ll get you underway 
with some skills training.

Tim Speer, Mike Lowry, 
Arthur Bajada, Phil Green 
Joint Mobile Services Officers

IRB REPORTBOAT ARENA REPORT

Generous government grants allowed 
for the addition of new Oxy Vivas, 
First Aid Kits, and Major Bleed Kit this 
season. We are once again registered 
to store and deliver Methoxyflurane 
due to recent requalification of key 
patrolling members. It is excellent 
to now have a First Aid Room that is 
fully equipped and looking great.
Patrols were kept busy with 243 First 
Aid cases this season.

STATISTICS
243 First aid cases made up as 
follows:
4   Fractures/dislocations
1   Heart related 
1  Major Marine Stings 
1  Major Wounds
35   Minor cuts & abrasions
184  Minor marine stings
15   Other
2   Spinal

Natalie Speer
First Aid Officer

FIRST AID REPORT

This season was another of growth 
for the boat section and began with 
the purchase of another boat. We 
also had a new set of oars donated 
as we broke a bit of gear while 
striving to be better, thanks MizCo. 
We finished the seasons on a high 
with ten crews competing at the 
Aussies and four crews competing 
in the Aussie Masters.

We had some great results 
throughout the season. City teams 
started strong and performed 
well in the Surf League. The boat 
section continued strongly through 
the season to win the inaugural 
Sprint Carnival and finished in fine 
fashion with some great results 
in the State Masters, State Titles, 
Aussie Masters, and Aussies. Some 
of our crews had their share of bad 
luck but it did not stop anyone from 
having a serious crack at doing 
their best.

There was significant development 
of our Under 19 and Under 23 
women’s crews. They were 
predominantly made up of rowers 
that have been through our 
junior sections of the club. This 
demonstrates that if we create 
pathways for our juniors they will 
stay involved in surf sports at our 
club. We will now strive to get that 
same development in the Under 19 

and Under 23 men’s crews. Thanks 
to Angela Razvi for her involvement 
in the ‘Have a Go’ days, your huge 
contribution is helping to facilitate 
these pathways between juniors 
and seniors.

Our sport has been under threat 
through reduced numbers 
statewide. As part of our desire to 
keep the sport growing, coaches 
from our club helped other clubs 
develop crews and sweeps. It led 
to Steve Bowler being named 
State Boatman of the Year. 
Congratulations Steve. To new 
sweeps that took on multiple crews 
and lent a hand to others all season, 
a massive thank you is also in order. 
It epitomizes our One Club One 
Community philosophy.

Shane Bolwer, Geoff Wilson, and 
Kaylene Bozich have been active 
in the state boat panel to ensure 
the continuation of our sport. Geoff 
was selected as the vice-president 
of the ASRL this season and that 
commitment gives us a voice in this 
forum. The effort that is put into 
these additional commitments must 
be commended.

We can compete because we 
have enough officials to allow 
us to compete. Thank you to all 
our officials; Matthew Slattery, 
Kaylene Bozich, Sonya Read, Robert 
Somerford, Lea Anderson, Julia 
Feutrill, and Peter Waey. I hope that 
I have named everyone so apologies 
if I have missed anybody.

Lea Anderson and Kaylene Bozich 
are stepping down from their roles 
this year. Lea has had to put up with 
all the questions about draws and 
results over many years, so thank 
you. Kaylene has stepped down as 
vice-captain of the boat section. 
Kaylene has done an enormous job, 
always with a smile, and her effort 
and enthusiasm as a member of 
the state boat panel will be missed 
by not only City boaties, but by 
all WA boaties.

For the 2018/19 season the City 
boat section will continue to grow 
and to develop, striving to offer 
pathways from junior to senior 
surf sports. In future seasons, if we 
continue to work together, support 
each other, and offer help where 
needed, City of Perth Surf Life 
Saving Club will have a wonderful 
blueprint for the future.

Malcolm Lowther
Boat Captain

CITY OF PERTH SLSC – ANNUAL REPORT 201830 31



EDUCATION REPORT

EDUCATION REPORT CONT...LIFE SAVING EVENTS & FIRST AID REPORT

The City Lifesaving Team consisted 
of a small but talented group this 
season and it showed at a national 
level as they contributed 15 of 
the club’s total 66 points in the 
Australian Open Championships 
points tally.

In an outstanding display of 
dedication to the Champion 
Lifesaver event, Talia Jakubans 
(Open Female) coached 
herself to gold at the WA State 
Championships in February. She 
backed this performance up at 
the Aussies with a bronze medal, 
despite citing it as one of the most 
difficult theory exams she had ever 
sat, leaving no doubt as to her 
ability as both a coach and 
a competitor.

The First Aid team was thrown back 
into the competitive season at the 
annual intra-club in January which 
set them up well in the lead-up 

to the WA State Championships 
in February. City dominated the 
States, winning each contested 
category and securing places for all 
the teams at the Aussies.

The Aussies lead-up saw a heavy 
increase in training for the team 
which paid off in the points score. 
Katherine Hutton and Beau Hewitt 
(U17) secured an admirable 7th 
place. In the U19 event, George 
West and Beau Hewitt placed 
9th, with Nathan Scott and Ingrid 
Smith bringing home the silver 
medal. The Opens saw George 
West and Nathan Scott place 9th, 
and Katie Schutze and Christine 
Burke secure a gold medal and the 
Tess Cramond, AO OBE Perpetual 
Shield. City is the first WA club 
to be presented with the shield 
since it was donated in 1999. All 
competitors displayed exceptional 
sportsmanship at the Aussies and 
should be congratulated on their 

maturity in competition, as well as 
their outstanding results.

The City Lifesaving Team has 
had so much support this season 
that there are too many people 
to list in thanks. To all those who 
volunteered their time as patients, 
officials and spectators at the 
intra-club, States and Aussies; 
thank you. A special thank you must 
also go to Jane Scott (Champion 
Lifesaver) and Rik Lovett (First 
Aid) who provided coaching 
points throughout the season and 
officiated at the States and Aussies 
so that the teams were able 
to compete.

Katie Schutze
Coach

The Nippers participated with 
interest and enthusiasm. They 
collected the following awards:

• 614 awards and 611 proficiencies 
for Junior Activity Competition 
Skills and Preliminary Evaluation 
Skills

• 81 awards for Surf Aware One
• 42 awards Safe Surf One
• 45 awards Safe Surf Two

This was a fabulous result for 
all concerned, especially Nipper 
Director Andrew Young, Karen Hunt 
and all the age managers.

A new award for Nipper parents, 
the Nipper Rescue Certificate, 
proved an outstanding success. 
78 awards were achieved, largely 
through the dedication and energy 
of Grant Trew and the significant 
contribution from Jason Evans 
and John Guilfoyle. This award is 
of tremendous importance to the 
safety of the nippers in the water.

The Youth, organised by Angela 
Razvi, achieved an outstanding 
result with 37 Surf Rescue 
Certificates being awarded. 
Graham Wimbridge stepped up the 
plate with the challenging task of 
training 34 SRC candidates. The 
group responded with enthusiasm, 
28 passing at the first attempt 
and, with continued training, the 
remaining six all qualified. Grant and 
Ingrid Smith trained a small squad 
of three successful Candidates.

The Inflatable Rescue Boat (IRB) 
division trained all year with 
dedication and enthusiasm. Their 
achievements included:

• 6 Silver Medallion IRB Driver 
Awards

• 16 Driver Proficiencies
• 16 new Crew Awards
• 36 Crew Proficiency

Brett Wakefield and Michael Lowry 
trained a successful group of young 
members, who completed their 
Bronze Medallion and then achieved 
their IRB Crew Certificate.

Three traditional Bronze training 
courses were organised. Matthew 
and Janelle Slattery along with 
trainee, Michael Darragh, ran 
group one. Brett Wakefield and 
trainee, John Guilfoyle, assisted 
by Carl Wheeler ran group two. 
Tim Speer, Arthur Bajada and 
Michael Darragh ran group three. 
These trainers graduated 21 new 
Bronze Medallion members.

A new intensive training course 
was introduced as the result of a 
request to trial a course for time-
poor members. The courses were 
well patronised and were certainly 
beneficial for time-poor potential 
club members and returning Bronze 
members. The intensive Bronze 
courses were trained successfully 
by John Guilfoyle, Jason Evans, 
Natalie Law, Geoff Wilson, John 
Leivers and Carl Wheeler.

We failed to attract younger 
members to become trainers and 
this needs to be the focus for next 
year. Our club has four new training 
officers and three new assessors.

Another success was the 
introduction of a Pain Management 
course. Pain Management can 
now be offered as a service during 
Patrol. Our first pain management 
course was a success due to the 
efforts of Natalie Speer, along with 
Brett Wakefield, John King, Helen 
Loake and John Guilfoyle.

The introduction of free First Aid 
Courses at the Surf Life Saving WA 
Training and Education Division 
attracted six club members, each 
of whom achieved an award. The 
courses are proving to be very 
popular and should be supported by 
all club members. Planning is well 
underway for a course, or courses, 
to be conducted in our club rooms.

SLSWA trialled a newly designed 
beach management course 
dedicated to Western Australian 
beach conditions. The course was 
attended by four club members and 
each was an award recipient.

Thanks to the tireless efforts 
of Tanya Andrew, assisted by 
John Guilfoyle, 49 club members 
completed Certificate 2, which 
allowed them to compete in the 
Australian Championships at 
Scarborough.

Season 2018/19 will herald the 
operation of the new education 
website that will be easy to use 
for the registration and payment 
of all courses.

An application for a grant to the 
Federal Government was successful 
and this community funding will 
enable the club to purchase new 
training equipment in 2018/19. The 
Auspice Agreement, thanks to the 
endeavours of the Hon Julie Bishop, 
MP and Member for Curtin, was 
renewed for 2018/2019.

We hope to build on this year’s 
success to make 2018/19 an even 
more productive year.

John Guilfoyle
Director of Education

The 2017/18 year was a tremendous 
time of achievement in the City of 
Perth SLSC education program, 
demonstrated by the presentation 
of 3019 awards to our wonderful 
male and female achievers. The list 
of awards includes the Surf Rescue 
Certificate, Bronze Medallions, 
Senior First Aid Pain Management, 
Advanced Resuscitation Certificate, 
Gold Medallions and many others.

Our club trainers/assessors, 
especially Graham Wimbridge 
and Justin and Karthi Zis, have 
contributed heavily to establishing 
a course program structure and 
implementation plan.

Club Bronze Proficiency 
requalifications were very 
successful, resulting in an 
impressive 287 proficiencies. The 
requalification program, over four 
Sunday mornings, was conducted 
by Steve Reynolds, assisted by 
as many as ten club members 
a session. Trainers, trainees, 
assessors and club members all 
cooperated to make these sessions 
successful. A very special thank you 
goes to Jason Evans, Kylie Leaman 
and Paul Andrew.

At the same time, Janelle Slattery 
conducted requalification 
and training for three awards, 
resulting in candidates achieving 
proficiencies and awards in the 
following:

• Advanced Resuscitation 
Techniques – 29 proficiencies

• Advanced Resuscitation 
Techniques Certificate – 31 
proficiencies

• Resuscitation (AID) – 13 
proficiencies

The Youth of the club also joined 
in requalification days and this 
resulted in 66 Proficiencies being 
awarded.
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The Aussies returning to 
Scarborough Beach this year 
provided more of our competitors 
the opportunity to compete. 
Over 150 City athletes took part, 
ranging from boats, water and 
beach through to march past, 
first aid and lifesaving. Our local 
knowledge and experience in the 
classic Scarborough beach break 
(dumper) provided some significant 
performances.

In the male water arena, it has 
been 18 years since our club has 
produced a Gold in the water when 
the likes of Cohen, Carrick, Jacobs, 
Tidey won the U17 Cameron Relay. 
Celebrations of delight could be 
heard across Scarborough Beach 
when a trio of young men won Gold 
in the U19 Board Relay, with the 
team comprising of Riley Walker, 
Matt Colliss and Tommy Gallagher. 
No WA club has previously won a 
medal in this open event.

Simon Huitenga proved to be a 
dominant swimmer amongst all 
that stood before him and over a 
variety of distances. Previously 
taking Bronze in the Open Swim 
race in 2012 he won Gold in the 
Restricted Surf Race and was 
within millimetres of winning the 
Open Surf Race (photo finish) and 
was eventually awarded Silver, an 
outstanding effort in a top field 
of athletes from around Australia. 
He also won Bronze in the 2km 
Ocean water event. A medal of each 
colour for Simon! Andy Donaldson 
had a great swim with 4th in the 
Restricted Surf Race.

Placing in the top 3 in an Ironman 
event at Aussies is a significant 
achievement. Congratulations to 
Tom Gallagher for his Bronze in 
the U19 Ironman. The coaches 
will always say that there is no 
substitute for discipline and hard 
work and Tommy’s work ethic is 
testament to this and he thoroughly 
deserves the success.

Tom also combined with Max 
Anderson Loake, Matt Colliss and 
Ethan Jackson to take out the 
Bronze in the U19 Surf Teams. Tom 
was 5th and Max 8th in the U19 Surf 
Race, Ethan placed 9th in the U17 
Ironman and Laine Andrew/Lachie 
Wright placed 7th in the U19 Double 
Ski Final. Riley, Max and Tom also 
placed 5th in the U19 Taplin Final.

In the female arena there were also 
some outstanding performances 
with several competitors reaching 
the finals. Well done to Mia Fraser 
8th in U15 Flags, Mikaela Swart, 

AUSSIE CHAMPIONSHIPS 
TEAM MANAGER REPORT

Imogen Herrington, Ayesha Ravzi 
and Mia – 4th in the U15 Beach 
Relay and Alex Slocombe who 
made the U15 Ironwoman and 
Surf Race Finals.

Kalani Scott/Sophie Lloyd placed 
7th in U17 Board Rescue Final, 
Isabella Walker 4th in the Tube 
Rescue and 8th in the U19 Surf Race 
Final. Kiera Albertson also reached 
the Open Ski final and Jade Mickle 
the Open Surf Race Final. Heidi Gan 
had an amazing swim in the 2km 
Ocean Swim with a Silver medal.

Talia Jakubans had an outstanding 
result – Bronze in the Open 
Champion Lifesaver event where 
she represented the club proudly.

Gabby Murphy, Britt Houghton, 
Alysse Priddis and Holly Noack a 
well-deserved Bronze in the Open 
Beach Relay backing up from their 
Bronze last year. The female relay 
team has been very consistent. 
Gabby also placed 7th in the Beach 
Sprint Final.

Katie Schutze and Christine Burke 
took out Gold in the Open First Aid 
bringing home a perpetual shield 
to the Club, a first for WA since the 
shield was introduced. Ingrid Smith 
and Nathan Scott bought home a 
silver in the U19 division. This was 
Katie Shutze’s first year as coach 
of first aid and these results are 
outstanding.

We had fantastic representation in 
the surf boats this year, no finals, 
however many exciting finishes. City 
boaties had 10 crews competing 
this year and with a growing section 
the future looks bright for City.

We had many master competitors 
this year with Sharan Colliss taking 
home 6 medals, including a Gold in 
the Surf Teams with Em Chetwin 
and Nicky Scott. Andrew Walker 
(Wal) – Gold in the 2km Beach Race, 
Joanna Kagi – Gold in 2km Beach 
Race and Kelvin Bishop – Gold in 
Rescue Tube.

Other notable performances came 
from Nicky Scott – Silver in the 
Board Race and Em Chetwin – Silver 
in her Ironwoman category, Jane 
Hewitt – Silver in 2km Beach Race, 
John Foster, Todd Bowler, Marc 
Goodall and Shane Bowler – Silver 
in Surf Boats, John Guilfoyle and 
Gordon Jones – Bronze in 2km 
Ocean Swim for their age groups.

With many highs and lows 
thanks to the Scarborough shore 
break the Aussies ended and we 
began thinking about heading to 
Broadbeach in 2019. The event 
in Scarborough would not have 
been possible without our band 
of volunteers; Team Managers 
– Michelle Ireland, Em Chetwin, 
Linda Jackson, Janelle Slattery, 
Nicky Scott, Sharan Colliss, Cimon 
Albertson; Coaches and support 
staff – Andrew Walker (Wal), 

Rick Turner, Leigh Buchan, Katie 
Schutze, Ian Scott, Mal Lowther, 
Murray Hughes, Eddie Gibbs; the 
Surf Sports Director Linda Walker 
and Deputy Jack Retty; Tanya 
Andrew for brilliant photography 
and all the competitors, parents 
and supporters.

Rob Walker
Team Manager
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HISTORIAN / ARCHIVIST REPORT

Most Patrol Hours 
John Guilfoyle with 85 hours

Patrol Member of the Year 
Gabrielle Murphy

The Eugene Mickle Award for 
Contribution to the Nippers 
Karin Hunt

Most Promising U15 
Alex Slocombe

Most Promising U17 
Ethan Jackson

Most Enthusiastic U19 
Ingrid Smith

Coach of the Year 
Katie Schutze

Boat Person of the Year 
Rebecca Boyanich

Best Instructor 
Matthew Slattery

Administrator of the Year 
Angela Razvi

Best Club Member 
Helen Loake

President’s Medal 
Gabrielle Murphy

LONG SERVICE AWARD 
We congratulate ten of our 
members who became eligible for 
SLSA Long Service Awards

50 Years’ Long Service 
William [Bill] Jarman 
Barry Kitson 
Geoff Leivers 
John Leivers 
Robert Somerford 
Denis Trew

25 Years’ Long Service 
Neil Johnson 
Aaron McRae 
Matthew Milner 
Andrew Walker

CLUB TROPHIES AND AWARDS

RECOGNITION
In October 2017, as part of the 
recognition of Club history and 
our Life Members, the names on 
the Life Members recognition wall 
were enhanced to make them more 
readable. This was favourably 
received by the club members. 
The interpretation of the club 
history in the new clubrooms 
is still a work in progress.

PHOTOGRAPHS
This season we have been 
concentrating on historical photos. 
Thanks go to Jeff Scott for 
providing videos from his collection 
and for scanning hundreds of old 
photos that have been sitting 
around in boxes. Many of these are 
black and white, of various sizes 
and related to the 1920s and 1930s. 
Ian has also been scanning more 
recent photos and has spent many 
hours matching digital copies to 
hard copies, identifying names, 
numbering and recording them.

In order to ensure that all aspects 
of the Club are represented we 
have asked members for photos of 
patrol groups and club members 
in general, as we always have a big 
representation from the Surf Sports 
area. Our thanks go to the people 
who have provided photos for 
the Archives.

DONATIONS
The Club received the Club and 
State Life Membership medals from 
the family of Rex Gatherer who 
was awarded Life Membership in 
1935. Rex Gatherer served as Club 
President from 1936-39 and State 
President in the 1943-44 season.

DISPLAYS
This season we have put together 
two displays in the display window 
in the corridor. The first display 
recognised the Club’s dominance 
in Patrol Efficiency in its early years 
and the second highlighted the 
achievements of the Boat section 
of the Club. Also photographs 
and videos covering the years 
2000 – 2010 were on display at 
a Sundowner.

Sue and Ian Scott
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AWARDS OF EXCELLENCE WINNERS

BERNIE KELLY MEDAL WINNER 
Jade Mickle

AWARDS OF EXCELLENCE FINALISTS

SURF SPORTS TEAM OF THE YEAR

Open Mixed First Aid: Katie Schutze, 
Christine Burke

U19 Male Surf Board Relay: Thomas 
Gallagher, Riley Walker, Matt Colliss

COACH OF THE YEAR
Andrew Walker, Katie Schutze

OPEN ATHLETE OF THE YEAR
Gabrielle Murphy, Jade Mickle, 
Simon Huitenga

YOUTH ATHLETE OF THE YEAR
Thomas Gallagher

YOUNG ACHIEVER OF THE YEAR
Ingrid Smith

OFFICIAL OF THE YEAR
Chris Murphy

BERNIE KELLY MEDAL
Gabrielle Murphy, Jade Mickle, 
Thomas Gallagher

STATE TEAM SELECTION

SLSWA AWARDS OF EXCELLENCE 2018

WESTERN SUNS STATE TEAM 
Seven City of Perth competitors 
were selected for the 2018 State 
Western Suns team that competed 
at the Interstate Championships 
at Moana SA in January 2018. The 
Western Australian tea finished on 
the podium in third place.

City of Perth members selected for 
the WA State Team are:

Open Female
Jade Mickle (WA State Team 
Female Captain) & Kiera Albertsen

Youth Male
Max Anderson Loake, 
Thomas Gallagher, Riley 
Walker & Matthew Colliss

Youth Female
Isabella Walker

STATE DEVELOPMENT TEAM
The WA State Development Team 
competed at the Freshwater, Manly 
Carnival and the Manly Nipper Nats 
carnival in January 2018. Five City 
members were selected as part of 
this squad.

U17 Male
Ethan Jackson

U17 Female
Sophie Lloyd

U15 Female
Mia Fraser

U14 Female
Imogen Herrington 
Alexandra Slocombe

Team Manager – Alysse Priddis

WESTERN SUNS STATE TEAM BOATS
A City of Perth Reserves Male boat 
crew was selected to represent the 
WA State Team at the Interstate 
Surf Boat Championships at 
Elouera, Sydney on Friday the 16th 
of February 2018. The State Team 
finished on the podium in 4th place.

Reserve Male Boat crew 
– City of Perth
Todd Bowler 
Shane Bowler 
John Foster 
Marc Goodall 
Sweep: Stephen Bowler

WESTERN SUNS STATE TEAM 
POOL RESCUE
City of Perth competitors were 
selected for the Interstate Pool 
Rescue Championships in Adelaide 
in August 2017. The State Team 
finished on the podium in 3rd place.

U19 Female
Isabella Walker (WA State Team 
Female Captain)

U17 Female
Madison Howe

Open Mixed First Aid 
1st Katie Schutze 
 Christine Burke

U19 Male Board Relay 
1st Matthew Colliss 
 Thomas Gallagher 
 Riley Walker

Restricted Male Surf Race 
1st Simon Huitenga

U19 Mixed First Aid 
2nd Nathan Scott 
 Ingrid Smith

Open Male Surf Race 
2nd Simon Huitenga

Elite Female 2km Ocean Swim 
2nd Heidi Gan

Open Female Beach Relay 
3rd Brittany Houghton 
 Gabrielle Murphy 
 Holly Noack 
 Alysse Priddis

U19 Male Surf Teams 
3rd Max Anderson Loake 
 Matthew Colliss 
 Thomas Gallagher 
 Ethan Jackson

Open Female Champion Lifesaver 
3rd Talia Jakubans

U19 Ironman 
3rd Thomas Gallagher

Elite Male 2km Ocean Swim 
3rd Simon Huitenga

2018 AUSTRALIAN CHAMPIONSHIPS
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2018 AUSTRALIAN MASTERS 
CHAMPIONSHIPS

GOLD MEDALLISTS
Open Female Surf Boat 
Chelsea Boyanich; Rebecca 
Boyanich; Emily Burton; Amanda 
Rukuwai Donnelly; John Leivers 
(Sweep)

Open Male Swim Race (2km) 
Thomas Gallagher

U17 Male Swim Race (2km) 
Ethan Jackson

U17 Male Ski Race (6km) 
Ethan Jackson

40-44 Female Swim Race (2km) 
Emily Chetwin

55-59 Male Ski Race (6km) 
David Caley

SILVER MEDALLISTS
Open Male Surf Boat 
Todd Bowler; John Foster; Marc 
Goodall; Jack Reddrop; Stephen 
Bowler (Sweep)

Open Male Surf Race (2km) 
Andrew Donaldson

Open Male Ski Race (12km) 
Ben Carrick

Open Female Ski Race (12km) 
Kiera Albertsen

U17 Male Board Race (4km) 
Ethan Jackson

U14 Male Beach Run (4km) 
Rory Mitchell

U11-13 Ironwoman 
Mia Jackson

35-39 Female Beach Run (4km) 
Emily Chetwin

55-59 Male Beach Run (2km) 
David Caley

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
Open Female Surf Boat 
Lani Cremer; Elizabeth Mair; Rachel 
Ross; Billie Searing; Geoff Wilson 
(Sweep)

Open Female Board Race (4km) 
Kiera Albertsen

U17 Male Board Race (4km) 
Matthew Colliss

OVERALL POINTS
Trigg Island 301
North Cottesloe 188
City of Perth  106

GOLD MEDALLISTS
U13 Male Cameron Relay 
Joel Baldwin; Fred LeMessurier; 
Owen Lilleyman; Samuel Morison

U13 Female Cameron Relay 
Holly Fraser; Charlotte McDermid; 
Mia Nesbit; Alice Williams

U13 Male Board Rescue 
Joel Baldwin; Nathan Hunt

U13 Female Beach Relay 
Sophia Coutts; Holly Fraser; Sienna 
Greig; Charlotte McDermid

U13 Male Surf Race 
Owen Lilleyman

U13 Female Surf Race 
Alice Williams

U12 Male Beach Flags 
Rory Wallace

U11 Female Surf Race 
Angela Williams

U10 Male Surf Teams 
Jack Dickie; Austin Pollard; Archie 
Ryan; Zy Woodham

U10 Female 1km Beach Run 
Sienna Hathrill

SILVER MEDALLISTS
U13 Female Surf Teams 
Sophie Baron-Hay; Mia Jackson; 
Charlotte McDermid; Mia Nesbit

U13 Male Surf Teams 
Joel Baldwin; Tadhg Doran; Nathan 
Hunt; Owen Lilleyman

U13 Female Board Rescue 
Mia Jackson; Mia Nesbit

U13 Ironman 
Nathan Hunt

U13 Female Beach Flags 
Charlotte McDermid

U12 Male Board Rescue 
Ari Pearson; Oliver Woods

U12 Female Board Rescue 
Jorja Van Pelt; Telani Woodham

U12 Female Surf Race 
Telani Woodham

U11 Female Surf Teams 
Leanne Gwynne; Nina Musk; 
Angela Williams; Hannah Young

U11 Female Cameron Relay 
Georgia Crabb; Sophie Munday; 
Angela Williams; Hannah Young

U11 Female Board Rescue 
Angela Williams; Hannah Young

U11 Male Beach Relay 
Hamish Fraser; Jim LeMessurier; 
Kael Wallace; Patrick Woods

U11 Iron Woman 
Hannah Young

U11 Male Beach Sprint 
Hamish Fraser

U10 Ironman 
Zy Woodham

U10 Male Surf Race 
Zy Woodham

U10 Male 1km Beach Run 
Declan King

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
U13 Female Board Relay 
Mia Jackson; Mia Nesbit; 
Grace Young

U13 Ironwoman 
Mia Jackson

U13 Male Beach Sprint 
Fred LeMessurier

U11 Female Board Relay 
Emily Nesbit; Angela Williams; 
Hannah Young

U11 Female Beach Relay 
Georgia Crabb; Nikita Cramer; 
Sophie Munday; Cassia Poole

U11 Male Beach Flags 
Hamish Fraser

U10 Female Surf Teams 
Lucy Dutton; Riley Patterson; 
Angelique Rhodes; Marla Stewart

U10 Ironman 
Archie Ryan

U10 Male Surf Race 
Jack Dickie

2017/18 STATE ENDURANCE CHAMPIONSHIPS

2018 JUNIOR STATE CHAMPIONSHIPS

GOLD MEDALLISTS
130 yrs min Female Surf Teams 
Emily Chetwin; Sharan Colliss; 
Nicola Scott

50-54 Female 2km Beach Run 
1st Joanna Kagi

50-54 Male 2km Beach Run 
1st Andrew Walker

55-59 Male Rescue Tube Race 
1st Kelvin Bishop

SILVER MEDALLISTS
160 yrs min Male Surf Boat 
Shane Bowler; Todd Bowler;John 
Foster; Marc Goodall; Stephen; 
Bowler (Sweep)

130 yrs min Female Taplin Relay 
Sharan Colliss; Linda Jackson; 
Nicola Scott

45-49 Female Board Rescue 
Sharan Colliss; Nicola Scott

40-44 Ironwoman 
Emily Chetwin

45-49 Female Board Race 
Nicola Scott

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
40-44 Female Board Race 
Emily Chetwin

40-49 Female 2km Ocean Swim 
Sharan Colliss

45-49 Female Surf Race 
Sharan Colliss

45-49 Female Rescue Tube Race 
Sharan Colliss

50-59 Male 2km Ocean Swim 
Gordon Jones

55-59 Male Surf Race 
Kelvin Bishop

55-59 Female 2km Beach Run 
Jane Hewitt

70 & Over Male 2km Ocean Swim 
John Guilfoyle
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GOLD MEDALLISTS
Open Reserves Male Surf Boat 
Simon Allison; Damon Hansen-
Knarhoi; Joel Ireland; Andrew Kelly; 
Geoff Wilson (Sweep)

Open First Aid Teams 
Christine Burke; Katie Schutze

Open Female Surf Teams 
Heidi Gan; Romi Lawlor; Jade 
Mickle; Isabella Walker

Open Male Board Rescue 
Tom Gallagher; Riley Walker

Open Female Beach Relay 
Brittany Houghton; Gabrielle 
Murphy; Holly Noack; Alysse Priddis

Open Female Champion Lifesaver 
Talia Jakubans

Open Male Surf Belt 
Thomas Gallagher

Open Ironwoman 
Jade Mickle

Open Ironman 
Tom Gallagher

Open Female Board Race 
Jade Mickle

Open Female Single Ski Race 
Jade Mickle

Open Female Surf Race 
Jade Mickle

Open Male Surf Race 
Simon Huitenga

Open Female Beach Sprint 
Gabrielle Murphy

Open Female Beach Flags 
Gabrielle Murphy

Over 24 Female Restricted 
Surf Race 
Heidi Gan

Over 24 Male Restricted Surf Race 
Simon Huitenga

U19 Female Surf Teams 
Romi Lawlor; Sophie Lloyd; Kalani 
Scott; Isabella Walker

U19 Male Surf Teams 
Max Anderson Loake; Matthew 
Colliss; Thomas Gallagher; Ethan 
Jackson

U19 Male Board Relay 
Matthew Colliss; Thomas Gallagher; 
Riley Walker

U19 Male Board Rescue 
Thomas Gallagher; Riley Walker

U19 Ironman 
Thomas Gallagher

U19 Male Surf Belt Race 
Thomas Gallagher

U19 Male Surf Race 
Thomas Gallagher

U19 Female Surf Race 
Isabella Walker

U17 Male Ironman 
Ethan Jackson

U17 Female Board Rescue 
Sophie Lloyd; Kalani Scott

U15 Female Beach Relay 
Mia Fraser; Anna Jorgensen; Erin 
Mitchell; Mikaela Swart

U14 Ironwoman 
Alexandra Slocombe

U14 Female Beach Sprint 
Imogen Herrington

SILVER MEDALLISTS
Open Male Surf Boat 
Patrick Anderson Loake; Jack 
Reddrop; Mundawae Sanderson-
Green; Jack Scott; Bruce Lilburne 
(Sweep)

Open Mixed Lifesaver Relay 
Rebecca Boyanich; Chelsea 
Boyanich; Ben Carrick; Matthew 
Colliss; Thomas Gallagher; Simon 
Huitenga; Honor Lane; John Leivers; 
Amanda Rukuwai Donnelly

Open First Aid Teams 
Nathan Scott; Ingrid Smith

Reserve Grade Male Surf Boat 
Todd Bowler; Shane Bowler; John 
Foster; Marc Goodall; (Sweep) 
Stephen Bowler

Reserve Grade Female Surf Boat 
Nicole Cooper; Elizabeth Mair; Billie 
Searing; Kathleen Unwin; (Sweep) 
Geoff Wilson

Open Female Taplin Relay 
Keira Albertsen; Heidi Gan; Jade 
Mickle

Open Male Surf Teams 
Max Anderson Loake; Andrew 
Donaldson; Thomas Gallagher; 
Simon Huitenga

Open Female Rescue Tube Rescue 
Emily Chetwin; Sharon Colliss; 
Bridget Darragh; Heidi Gan; Isabella 
Walker

Open Male Rescue Tube Rescue 
Ben Carrick; Andrew Donaldson; 
Simon Huitenga; Riley Walker

Open Female Single Ski Relay 
Kiera Albertsen; Tricia Gilbert; Jade 
Mickle

Open Female Board Relay 
Kiera Albertsen; Sophie Lloyd; Jade 
Mickle

Open Female Board Rescue 
Sophie Lloyd; Kalani Scott

Open Ironman 
Simon Huitenga

Over 24 Male Restricted Surf Race 
Andrew Donaldson

U21 Female Single Ski 
Kiera Albertsen

U19 Male Taplin Relay 
Max Anderson Loake; Thomas 
Gallagher; Riley Walker

U19 Male Single Ski Relay 
Max Anderson Loake; Thomas 
Gallagher; Riley Walker
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U19 Ironman 
Max Anderson Loake

U19 Female Surf Belt Race 
Isabella Walker

U19 Male Board Race 
Thomas Gallagher

U19 Male Single Ski 
Riley Walker

U19 Male 2km Beach Run 
Sam McGovern

U17 Male Taplin Relay 
Matthew Colliss; Ethan Jackson; 
Ben Schuhkraft

U17 Female Board Relay 
Romi Lawlor; Sophie Lloyd; Kalani 
Scott; Emily Windsor

U17 Male Board Rescue 
Matthew Colliss; Ethan Jackson

U17 Iron Woman 
Sophie Lloyd

U17 Ironman 
Matthew Colliss

U17 Male Board Race 
Matthew Colliss

U17 Male Single Ski Race 
Ethan Jackson

U15 Female Cameron Relay 
Lucinda Hannington; Tamsyn 
Ireland; Anna Jorgensen; Alexandra 
Slocombe

U14 Female Surf Race 
Alexandra Slocombe

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
Open March Past 
Susan Carrick; Emma Carrick; Penny 
Cohen; Anne Edmondson; Tania 
Gregg; Helen Loake; Louise Norris; 
Angela Razvi; Catriona Reynolds, 
Denise Scott, Wendy Suchenia, 
Debbie Wagstaff (Ian Scott – coach)

Open Mixed Lifesaver Relay 
Catherine Bell; Heidi Gan; Bruce 
Lilburne; Jade Mickle; Shannon 
Mitchell; Jack Reddrop; Mundawae 
Sanderson-Green; Kalani Scott; 
Jack Scott

Open Female Surf Teams 
Kara Elliott; Talia Jakubans; Sophie 
Lloyd; Olivia Mickle

Open Male Surf Teams 
Matthew Colliss; Jason Evans; Ethan 
Jackson; Jack Retty

Open Male Board Relay 
Ben Carrick; Thomas Gallagher; 
Riley Walker

Open Male Board Rescue 
Ben Carrick; Simon Huitenga

Open Male Board Race 
Thomas Gallagher

Open Female Beach Relay 
Amanda Buchan; Alex Gaynor; Emily 
Longo; Meaghan Slattery

Open Female Beach Flags 
Brittany Houghton

Open Male Surf Race 
Andrew Donaldson

U19 Male Single Ski Relay 
Laine Andrew; Joshua Snook; 
Lachlan Wright

U19 Male Board Relay 
Max Anderson Loake; Laine Andrew; 
Ethan Jackson

U19 Male Board Race 
Riley Walker

U19 Female Rescue Tube Rescue 
Kara Elliott; Romi Lawler; Olivia 
Mickle; Kalani Scott

U19 Ironman 
Riley Walker

U17 Male Board Race 
Ethan Jackson

U15 Female Board Rescue 
Anna Jorgensen; Alexandra 
Slocombe

U15 Female Beach Sprint 
Mia Fraser

U15 Female Beach Flags 
Mia Fraser

U14 Female Beach Flags 
Imogen Herrington

OVERALL POINTS
Trigg Island 898
City of Perth 541  
North Cottesloe 355
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2018 STATE MASTERS CHAMPIONSHIPS

2017-18 SUNSMART POOL RESCUE 
CHAMPIONSHIPS

GOLD MEDALLISTS
130 yrs min Female Surf Teams 
Emily Chetwin; Tricia Gilbert; 
Angela Razvi

240 yrs min Surf Boat 
Bill Jarman; Graeme Kelly; Lloyd 
Kelly; Christoph Lebesmuehlbacher; 
Peter Waey

40-44 Female Board Race 
Emily Chetwin

40-44 Female Single Ski 
Emily Chetwin

45-49 Ironwoman 
Tricia Gilbert

45-49 Female Single Ski 
Tricia Gilbert

50-54 Female 2km Beach Run 
Joanna Kagi

55-59 Male Rescue Tube Race 
Kelvin Bishop

55-59 Male Surf Race 
Kelvin Bishop

SILVER MEDALLISTS
130 yrs min Female Taplin Relay 
Emily Chetwin; Tricia Gilbert; Angela 
Razvi

140 yrs min Male Surf Boat 
Shane Bowler; Todd Bowler; John 
Foster; Marc Goodall; (Sweep) 
Stephen Bowler

30-34 Ironwoman 
Emily Chetwin

40-44 Female Surf Race 
Emily Chetwin

60-64 Male 1km Beach Run 
Michael Darragh

BRONZE MEDALLISTS
50-54 Male Beach Flags 
Martin Cavanagh

50-54 Male Beach Sprint 
Martin Cavanagh

55-59 Female 2km Beach Run 
Jane Hewitt

55-59 Male 2km Beach Run 
David Caley

GOLD MEDALLISTS
Open Male 200m Obstacles 
Jack Retty

U19 Female 200m Super Lifesaver 
Isabella Walker

U19 Female 200m Obstacles 
Isabella Walker

U19 Female 100m Manikin Tow 
with Fins 
Isabella Walker

U19 Female 50m Manikin Carry 
Isabella Walker

U17 Female 200m Super Lifesaver 
Madison Howe

U17 Female 100m Rescue Medley 
Madison Howe

U17 Female 50m Manikin Carry 
Madison Howe

SILVER MEDALLISTS
U17 Female 200m Obstacles 
Madison Howe

U17 Female 100m Manikin Carry 
with Fins 
Madison Howe

U17 Female 50m Freestyle 
with fins 
Madison Howe

U14 Male 100m Manikin Tow 
with Fins 
Thomas Noordzy

U10 Female 100m Obstacles 
Hannah Young

SILVER MEDALLISTS
U19 Female 50m Freestyle 
with fins 
Isabella Walker

U14 Male 50m Freestyle with fins 
Thomas Noordzy

U14 Male 50m Manikin Carry 
Thomas Noordzy

U10 Female 50m Brick Carry 
Hannah Young

PATROL INFORMATION

PATROL  CAPTAIN VICE-CAPTAIN VICE-CAPTAIN
1  I&S Scott Peter Johnson Rebecca Dunsdon Larissa Meysner
2  J&J Scott Gabby Murphy Aiden Murphy
3  B Lilburne & P Waey Zoe Leunig Yasmeen Razvi
4  M Lowther Brendon Entrekin Kyle Reynolds Denham Wimbridge Glassford
5  J&G Leivers Justin Miles Thomas Lowther
6  W Jarman & K Hogg Jess Hallett Jason Stoop
7  G Mickle & P Andrew Pheobe George Daniel Scott Nicholas Scott
8  R Harper Nicholas Wagstaff Thomas Wagstaff
9  G Wilson Steve Prince Kate Olver
10  P Cohen Aaron Minervini Craig Hutchison
11  I (Smithy) McRae Mundawae Sanderson-Green Catherine Bell
12  R King Christine Burke Connie Lewis
13  R Somerford Jason Evans Patrick Anderson Loake
14  W Gaynor Shelby Warren Cameron Wishaw
15  R Groser Brittany Houghton Zoe Huitenga
16  L Buchan Montana Ardon Amy Murphy
17  J Pouleris Emily Slattery Max Anderson Loake Kiera Albertsen
18  L Kelly David Scott Talia Jakubans
19  G Trew Bridget Darragh Ingrid Smith
20  M Hughes Katherine Schutze Sarah Viney

LIFE SAVING AWARDS

Advanced Resuscitation 
Techniques – 13 
Michael Ammann, Linda Gope, 
Utpaul Gope, John Guilfoyle, Taylah 
Horsham, Samuel Maurice, Farook 
Razvi, Rasheeka Razvi, Janelle 
Slattery, Joshua Snook, Natalie 
Speer, Jason Stoop, Karthi Zis

Bronze Medallion – 40 
Luke Bajada, Cody Baker, Eliza 
Borrello, Maelle Bourdais, Liam 
Bowman, Melissa Brown, Alexandra 
Cavanagh, Meng Houng Chroek, 
Nicole Cooper, Bailey Eastman, Tara 
Elders, Sandra Fay, Julia Feutrill, 
Alexandria Gaynor, Courtney 
Gray, Alyce Grulich, Ciara Hillery, 
Madeleine Hood, Andrew Hopkins, 
Katherine Hutton, Daniel Jones, 
Marina Kakuda Ng, Matilda Keens, 
Romi Lawlor, Emily Longo, Thomas 
McMahon, Josh Mewburn, Finn 
O’Callaghan, Hamish Ryan, Linda 
Salleo, Mitchell Sellars, Chris 
Sellings, Ava Smedley, Amelia Speer, 

Sinan Wehrli, Tiziano Wehrli, Sophie 
Wheeler, Patrick Williams, Simon 
Williams, Sophie Wulff

First Aid – 15 
Emily Burton, Alexandra Cavanagh, 
Kirby Eastman, Brendon Entrekin, 
Tania Gregg, John Guilfoyle, Zoe 
Huitenga, Romi Lawlor, Helen 
Loake, Aiden Murphy, Amanda 
Rukuwai Donnelly, Benjamin Scott, 
Joshua Snook, Brett Wakefield, 
Riley Walker

Junior Activities Age Manager – 4 
Manish Agarwal, Taylah Horsham, 
Neil Johnson, Damian Ryan

Pain Management Certificate – 1 
Kate Olver

Radio Operator Certificate – 3 
Nicole Ammann, Thomas Noordzy, 
Ayesha Razvi

Resuscitation – 2 
Susan Forte, Joy Johnson

Silver Medallion IRB Driver – 6 
Harry Osbourne, David Scott, 
Joshua Snook, Kane Suchenia, 
Nicholas Wagstaff, Carl Wheeler

Spinal Management – 4 
Peter Johnson, Honor Lane, Kate 
Olver, David Scott

Development Coach – 8 
Chris Murphy, Emily Slattery, 
Meaghan Slattery, Erica Lovett, 
Katherine Schutze, Malcolm 
Lowther, Farook Razvi, Jack Retty
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Medha Agarwal 13
Charli Aitkenhead 9.5
Kiera Albertsen 31.75
Simon Allison 14
Daisy Alps 18.25
Michael Ammann 23.25
Nicole Ammann 26
Stefan Ammann 21.25
Max Anderson Loake 37.25
Patrick Anderson Loake 34
Laine Andrew 33.25
Paul Andrew 9.5
Maddy Ardon 23.75
Montana Ardon 21
Jake Armstrong 14.25
Matthew Armstrong 33.25
Adrian Arundell 4
Bailey Arundell 12.75
Brooke Attwood 4.75
Chelsea Attwood 19
Arthur Bajada 27.25
Luke Bajada 23.25
Paige Bajada 53.25
Rhys Bajada 30
Cody Baker 25.5
Vicki Baroni 23.75
Catherine Bell 21.25
Vicki Bilro 22
Amelie Bishop 9.5
Ethan Bloom 4.75
Eliza Borrello 14.5
Maelle Bourdais 35.75
Chelsea Boyanich 23.75
Rebecca Boyanich 22
Sophie Boylen 23.75
Kaylene Bozich 14.25
Clancy Bradshaw 24
Aaron Brinkworth 9.75
Ashton Brinkworth 14.23
Cooper Brinkworth 23.75
Henry Bromfield 23
Chris Brown 2
Melissa Brown 29.25
Chris Browne 12.75
Christine Burke 26.5
Josie Burnage 10
Emily Burton 25.75
Paul Burton 6
Isabella Bynevelt 23.5
David Caley 24
Ethan Capolingua 19
Alexandra Cavanagh 39.25
Martyn Cavanagh 32.75
Thomas Cavanagh 23.5
Simon Choo 6
Ben Colliss 19
Matthew Colliss 18.25
Sharan Colliss 28
Ashlee Connell 29.25
John Contessi 23
Max Contessi 23

David Cooley 18
Levi Cooper 2
Nicole Cooper 11.75
Lani Cremer 9.5
Katie Crofts 9.5
Robbie Crofts 5.25
Eoin Dalton 20.75
Rory Dalton 5.25
Bridget Darragh 23.75
Michael Darragh 32.5
John Davies 26
Tom Dawson 18.75
Kate De Marchi 25.75
Ella Dickie 16.25
Tim Dickie 6
Andrew Donaldson 24.75
Clayton Dorrington 11.25
Rebecca Dunsdon 21.25
Kirby Eastman 23.5
Angus Edmondson 18.75
Tara Elders 18.75
Kara Elliott 21.75
Travis England 23
Brendon Entrekin 32.5
Jason Evans 34.5
Sandra Fay 14.25
Lawrence Felgate 19
Mark Ferguson 28.5
Murray Ferguson 23.75
Sharon Ferguson 23.75
Elizabeth Feutrill 2
Julia Feutrill 15.5
Scott Foulsham 23.75
John Fox 17.25
Mia Fraser 24
Rebecca French 23.25
Martin Gallagher 23.25
Thomas Gallagher 19.25
Heidi Gan 2
Alexandria Gaynor 33
Phoebe George 26.5
John Gilbody 3
Laura Gillman 19
Madeline Goldie 14.75
Tarnica Golisano 16.25
Courtney Gray 21
Phillip Green 51.5
Angus Gregg 20.25
Alyce Grulich 26.25
John Guilfoyle 105.75
Christopher Gwynne 14
Robert Haagman 6
Jessica Hallett 32.5
Lucinda Hannington 11.25
Bruno Harray 27.75
Ryan Hathrill 6.5
Imogen Herrington 19.25
Beau Hewitt 21.75
Jane Hewitt 21.25
Ciara Hillery 23.25
Adrienne Hinkes 0

William Hoffmann 23
Kevin Hogg 9
Michael Hogg 32.5
Grace Holmes 23.75
Madeleine Hood 36.75
Andrew Hopkins 11.5
Hannah Hopkins 14.25
Emilia Horn 23
Brittany Houghton 28.5
Madison Howe 21.25
Zoe Huitenga 23.75
Karin Hunt 8
Craig Hutchison 31.75
Alison Hutton 2
Katherine Hutton 27.5
Lauren Hutton 14.25
Joel Ireland 26
Michelle Ireland 23.75
Tamsyn Ireland 23.5
Ethan Jackson 28.5
Haydn Jackson 5.25
Kirby Jackson 16.25
Linda Jackson 29.25
Talia Jakubans 23
William Jarman 7.5
Emily Johnson 19
Neil Johnson 11.5
Peter Johnson 24.5
William Johnson 22.5
Wade Jolly 6
Alicia Jones 4.5
Daniel Jones 24.25
Anna Jorgensen 21.75
Isabel Judd 14.25
Thomas Judd 22
Matt Judkins 2
Joanna Kagi 27
Marina Kakuda Ng 27.5
Brendan Kavanagh 2
Matilda Keens 40
Damien Kelly 6
Grace Kent 33.25
Joshua Kerrich 23.75
Andrea King 15
Richard King 2
Thomas Knight 22
Aria Kyriakou 31.75
Christian Kyriakou 0
Julian Kyriakou 37.25
Grant Landers 2
Honor Lane 27.5
Natalie Law 4.75
Romi Lawlor 28
Joshua Leaman 23.75
Kylie Leaman 4.75
Christoph Lebesmuehlbacher 23.75
Zoe Leunig 23.75
Connie Lewis 14.25
Drew Lilleyman 13.5
Scott Lilleyman 18.25
Helen Loake 2

PATROL HOURS

FULL NAME ALL PATROLLED HOURS

Emily Longo 26.5
Michael Lorraine 40.5
Michael Lowry 40.75
Mac Lowther 28.75
Malcolm Lowther 4.75
Thomas Lowther 18.25
Charles Macfadyen 8.5
Gary Mack 22.92
Elizabeth Mair 31.25
Jayne Malone 6
Sophie Markham 12
Tom Mascall-Browne 22
Joshua Maurice 23.5
Samuel Maurice 4.5
Heath McCabe 51.5
Zai McCabe 27
Rachael McCoy 8.25
Sam McGovern 23.5
Lyn McKay 2
Dean McKie 2
Shannon McLaren 4
Thomas McMahon 14.25
Penny McNiff 2
Aaron McRae 9
James Merrillees 20
Anja Messmer 4.75
Josh Mewburn 22
Andrzej Meysner 24
Larissa Meysner 26.75
Mason Michalopoulos 4
Jade Mickle 14.25
Olivia Mickle 31
Justin Miles 24.5
Aaron Minervini 23.75
Erin Mitchell 23.75
Rory Mitchell 18.25
Shannon Mitchell 19
Ella Morison 24
Stephen Munday 2.5
Holly Murdoch 14.25
Aiden Murphy 29.75
Amy Murphy 23.75
Gabrielle Murphy 24
Elizabeth Murray 25.75
Gary Namestnik 24
Benjamin Negus 5.25
Ella Newell 33
Minh H Nguyen 6
Holly Noack 15.5
Andrew Nolan 1.5
Maarten Noordzy 26.5
Thomas Noordzy 37
Colm O’Brien 2
Finn O’Callaghan 14.25
Grant Oldfield 27.75
Kate Olver 21.75
Harry Osbourne 33
Megan O’Sullivan 23.5
Amberley Parker 32.5
Stephen Parker 38
Dean Paton 11.5

Nicholas Payne 4.5
Todd Pearson 10.75
Grant Peoples 27.25
Harper Phillips 19
Andrew Pollard 12.5
Joseph Poole 14
Vicki Poole 12
Andrew Porteous 19.5
Stephen Prince 29.75
Angela Razvi 5
Ayesha Razvi 23
Farook Razvi 18
Rasheeka Razvi 31.25
Yasmeen Razvi 23.75
Catriona Read 14.25
Sonya Read 4.75
Matthew Reading 10
Victoria Reading 1.5
Jack Reddrop 14.25
Jack Retty 24.75
Kyle Reynolds 19
Stephen Reynolds 23.75
Ben Rogers 33.75
Rachel Ross 26.25
Mana Runnion 25.75
Alysha Ryan 29
Hamish Ryan 23.75
Patrick Ryan 16.75
Linda Salleo 28.5
Michael Sanderson-Green 28.5
Mundawae Sanderson-Green 18.25
Benjamin Schuhkraft 30.75
Laura Schuhkraft 23.75
Katherine Schutze 27
Benjamin Scott 27.75
Daniel Scott 16.5
David Scott 29.75
Jack Scott 27.75
Jemma Scott 9.75
Kalani Scott 21.25
Nathan Scott 19.5
Nicholas Scott 33.5
Nicola Scott 2.5
Peter Scott 16.5
Peter Scott 4.75
Tiger Scott 25.75
Billie Searing 19.5
Mitchell Sellars 17.5
Anna Sellings 4.5
Chris Sellings 8.5
Marc Senders 6.75
Sara Shular 27
Cameron Silvia 19
Annie Slattery 4.75
Emily Slattery 23.75
Matthew Slattery 4.5
Alexandra Slocombe 11
Alex Smedley 27.25
Ava Smedley 28.25
Alison Smith 12
Grant Smith 8.75

Ingrid Smith 23
Joshua Snook 23.75
Amelia Speer 21.75
Jacob Speer 7.5
Timothy Speer 18.5
Davydd Stagoll 8
George Stewart 23.75
Jack Stewart 23
Jason Stoop 32.5
Andrew Streeton 2.75
Kane Suchenia 26.5
Hayley Swart 28.5
Mikaela Swart 24.25
Tim Swart 19.5
Gavin Syminton 12
Sam Tacey 15.75
Ciara Taylor 32.25
James Thomas 0
Nicola Thomas 23
Grant Trew 7.25
Rory Trotter 9.5
Kathleen Unwin 32.25
Patrick Upton-Davis 23.5
Isabel Vaillancourt 29.5
Peter Van Bruchem 8.5
Sarah Viney 39.75
Peter Waey 4.75
Nicholas Wagstaff 6.5
Thomas Wagstaff 23.75
Brett Wakefield 28
Andrew Walker 2
Andrew Walker 8
Isabella Walker 13.75
Riley Walker 28.5
Thomas Walker 4.75
Heather Wallace 8.5
Greg Warren 23.5
Shelby Warren 19
Riley Watson 0
Andrew Webster 2
Sinan Wehrli 30.75
Tiziano Wehrli 18.25
George West 57.5
Carl Wheeler 71.75
Sophie Wheeler 18.5
Jessica Whittle 14.25
Georgia Williams 37
Patrick Williams 23
Simon Williams 8.75
Geoffrey Wilson 7.75
Graham Wimbridge 53.48
Denham Wimbridge Glassford 27.5
Haden Wimbridge Glassford 18
Cameron Wishaw 19
Samuel Wolozny 0
Lachlan Wright 15.75
Sophie Wulff 53.75

PATROL HOURS CONT...

CITY OF PERTH SLSC – ANNUAL REPORT 201846 47



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2018  
 

1 

 

 Note 
2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
Revenue 4 824,224 713,543 
Depreciation and amortisation expense  (142,748) (133,697) 
Membership  (24,176) (26,865) 
Administration expenses  (91,837) (79,569) 
Food, beverage and Merchandise expenses  (34,028) (39,290) 
Lifesaving and Education  (21,183) (13,662) 
Competition  (39,125) (52,096) 
Juniors and Youth  (28,738) (21,470) 
Finance costs  (45,374) (42,675) 
Funding  (239) (4,695) 
Facilities  (149,682) (175,796) 
Events and promotions  (18,286) (22,381) 
Employee benefits expense  (153,339) (198,689) 

Surplus / (Deficit) for the year  75,469 (97,342) 

Other comprehensive income    

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  - - 

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss  - - 

Other comprehensive surplus for the year, net of tax  - - 

Total comprehensive surplus / (deficit) for the year  75,469 (97,342) 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
30 APRIL 2018

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Statement of Financial Position 
30 April 2018 
 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
2 

 Note 
2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 

ASSETS    
CURRENT ASSETS    
Cash and cash equivalents 5 212,008 112,438 
Trade and other receivables 6 25,007 14,499 
Inventories  19,032 28,692 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  256,047 155,629 
NON-CURRENT ASSETS    
Property, plant and equipment 7 1,025,301 1,122,967 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  

1,025,301 1,122,967 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,281,348 1,278,596 

LIABILITIES    
CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Trade and other payables 8 34,824 31,294 
Employee benefits 10 11,164 12,082 
Deferred income  61,809 61,462 
Other financial liabilities 9 142,059 142,059 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  249,856 246,897 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Other financial liabilities 9 265,615 341,291 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  265,615 341,291 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  515,471 588,188 
NET ASSETS  765,877 690,408 
 

EQUITY    
Retained earnings  765,877 690,408 
TOTAL EQUITY  765,877 690,408 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2018 
 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
3 

2018 Retained 
Earnings 

$ 
Balance at 1 May 2017 690,408 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 75,469 

Other comprehensive income - 

Balance at 30 April 2018 765,877 
 
2017 Retained 

Earnings 
$ 

Balance at 1 May 2016 787,750 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year (97,342) 

Other comprehensive prior period income adjustment - 

Balance at 30 April 2017 690,408 
 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2018 
 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
4 

 Note 
2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 

    

    

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    

Receipts for members and customers  814,063 952,041 

Payments to suppliers and employees  (548,362) (903,587) 

Interest paid  (14,908) (42,675) 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities  250,793 (5,779) 

  
  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (45,082) (395,303) 

Net cash used by investing activities  (45,082) (395,303) 

  
  

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    

Repayment of borrowings  (106,141) (126,590) 

Proceeds from borrowings  - 350,000 

Net cash used by financing activities  (106,141) 223,410 

  
  

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held  99,570 (166,114) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  112,438 278,552 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 5 212,008 112,438 

  
  

 
\
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2018 
 

5 

 

The financial statements cover City of Perth SLSC Inc as an individual entity. City of Perth SLSC Inc is a not-for-profit 
Association incorporated in Western Australia under the Associations Incorporation Act (WA) 2015 ('the Act'). 

The principal activities of the Association for the year ended 30 April 2018 were 
• To maintain efficient patrolling of the beach under the control of the Club.  
• To ensure the most effective methods of rescuing persons in distress, and the resuscitation of the apparently 

drowned by study and practice of the methods of Surf Life Saving as taught by "Surf Life Saving Australia Limited".  
• To provide for the recreational, social, sporting and educational needs of the members.  

The functional and presentation currency of City of Perth SLSC Inc is Australian dollars. 

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Committee of Management on 11 June 2018. 

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated. 

1  Basis of Preparation  

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with the 
Australian Accounting Standards – Related Disclosure Requirements and the Act. 

 

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

(a) Income Tax  

The Association is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

(b) Leases  

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are 
charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term.  

Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over 
the life of the lease term. 

(c) Revenue and other income  

Revenue is recognised when the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, it is probable that economic 
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Association and specific criteria relating to the type of 
revenue as noted below, has been satisfied. 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is presented net of 
returns, discounts and rebates. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST). 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2018 
 

6 

 

 Sale of goods   

Revenue is recognised on transfer of goods to the customer as this is deemed to be the point in time when risks 
and rewards are transferred and there is no longer any ownership or effective control over the goods. 

 Grant revenue   

Grant revenue is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the entity 
obtains control of the grant, it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the entity 
and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably. 

When grant revenue is received whereby the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value directly back 
to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is recognised in the 
statement of financial position as a liability until the service has been delivered to the contributor, otherwise the 
grant is recognised as income on receipt. 

City of Perth SLSC Inc receives non-reciprocal contributions of assets from the government and other parties for 
zero or a nominal value. These assets are recognised at fair value on the date of acquisition in the statement of 
financial position, with a corresponding amount of income recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 

 Government grants   

Government grants are recognised at fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 
received and all grant conditions will be met. Grants relating to expense items are recognised as income over 
the periods necessary to match the grant to the costs they are compensating. Grants relating to assets are 
credited to deferred income at fair value and are credited to income over the expected useful life of the asset on 
a straight-line basis. 

 Donations   

Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received. 

 Interest revenue   

Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. 

 Rendering of services   

Revenue in relation to rendering of services is recognised depending on whether the outcome of the services 
can be estimated reliably.  If the outcome can be estimated reliably then the stage of completion of the services 
is used to determine the appropriate level of revenue to be recognised in the period. 

If the outcome cannot be reliably estimated then revenue is recognised to the extent of expenses recognised 
that are recoverable. 

 Gain on disposal of non-current assets   

When a non-current asset is disposed, the gain or loss is calculated by comparing proceeds received with its 
carrying amount and is taken to profit or loss. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2018 
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 Other income   

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Association is entitled to it. 

(d) Borrowing costs  

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. 

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

(e) Goods and services tax (GST)  

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except 
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). 

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as part of receivables or payables 
in the statement of financial position. 

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows 
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is 
classified as operating cash flows. 

(f) Inventories  

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

Inventories acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration are valued at the current replacement cost as at the 
date of acquisition, which is the deemed cost. 

(g) Property, plant and equipment  

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any 
accumulated depreciation and impairment. 

Items of property, plant and equipment acquired for nil or nominal consideration have been recorded at the 
acquisition date fair value. 

Where the cost model is used, the asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment losses. Costs include purchase price, other directly attributable costs and the initial estimate of the 
costs of dismantling and restoring the asset, where applicable. 

Assets measured using the revaluation model are carried at fair value at the revaluation date less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Revaluations are performed whenever there is a 
material movement in the value of an asset under the revaluation model. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2018 
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 Plant and equipment    

Plant and equipment are measured using the revaluation model. 

 Depreciation   

Property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets 
useful life to the Association, commencing when the asset is ready for use. 

Leased assets and leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the 
lease or their estimated useful life. 

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below: 
Fixed asset class Depreciation rate 
Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings  5% - 20%  
Competition Equipment  10%-20%  
Leasehold improvements  5% - 20%  

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset 
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate. 

(h) Financial instruments  

Financial instruments are recognised initially using trade date accounting, i.e. on the date that the Association 
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for 
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred). 

Financial Assets  

Financial assets are divided into the following categories which are described in detail below: 

• loans and receivables; 

Financial assets are assigned to the different categories on initial recognition, depending on the characteristics 
of the instrument and its purpose. A financial instrument’s category is relevant to the way it is measured and 
whether any resulting income and expenses are recognised in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income. 

All income and expenses relating to financial assets are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income in the ‘finance income’ or ‘finance costs’ line item respectively. 

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. They arise principally through the provision of goods and services to customers but 
also incorporate other types of contractual monetary assets. 
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After initial recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision 
for impairment. Any change in their value is recognised in profit or loss. 

The Association’s trade and other receivables fall into this category of financial instruments. 

Significant receivables are considered for impairment on an individual asset basis when they are past due at the 
reporting date or when objective evidence is received that a specific counterparty will default. 

The amount of the impairment is the difference between the net carrying amount and the present value of the 
future expected cash flows associated with the impaired receivable. 

In some circumstances, the Association renegotiates repayment terms with customers which may lead to 
changes in the timing of the payments, the Association does not necessarily consider the balance to be 
impaired, however assessment is made on a case-by-case basis. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at fair value through profit or loss’ or other financial 
liabilities depending on the purpose for which the liability was acquired. Although the Association uses derivative 
financial instruments in economic hedges of currency and interest rate risk, it does not hedge account for these 
transactions. 

The Association‘s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables (including finance lease 
liabilities), which are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.  

Impairment of financial assets 

At the end of the reporting period the Association assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets carried at amortised cost has been 
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate. 

Impairment on loans and receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance accounts, all other impairment 
losses on financial assets at amortised cost are taken directly to the asset. 

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against other expenses in profit or loss. 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments which are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

Bank overdrafts also form part of cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows and are 
presented within current liabilities on the statement of financial position. 
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(j) Employee benefits  

Provision is made for the Association's liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be wholly settled within 
one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. 

 

3  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments  

The directors make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial statements regarding 
assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances. 

These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial 
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates. 

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below. 

 Key estimates - receivables   

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that any of 
the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance is not 
considered collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date. 

 Key estimates - inventory   

Each item on inventory is reviewed on an annual basis to determine whether it is being carried at higher than its net 
realisable value. During the year, management have written down inventory based on best estimate of the net 
realisable value, although until the time that inventory is sold this is an estimate.  
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4  Revenue and Other Income  

  

2018 
$ 

2017 
$ 

Sales revenue    
- Membership fees  386,396 269,847 
- Sale of food, beverage and merchandise  40,155 64,789 

  426,551 334,636 

    

Other revenue    
- Donations and fundraising  52,756 59,980 
- Grants and sponsorship  118,303 132,376 
- Other trading revenue  225,554 184,707 
- Finance income  1,061 1,844 

  397,674 378,907 

Total Revenue  824,224 713,543 

 

5  Cash and Cash Equivalents  
Cash at bank and in hand  212,008 112,438 

  212,008 112,438 

6  Trade and Other Receivables  
CURRENT    
Trade receivables  23,650 12,209 
GST Receivable  1,357 - 
Other Receivables  - 2,290 

  25,007 14,499 
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7  Property, plant and equipment  

 

2018 
$ 

2017 
$ 

General and Office Equipment   
At cost 18,760 18,760 
Accumulated depreciation (18,294) (17,491) 

 465 1,269 

Competition and Lifesaving Equipment   
At cost 260,751 227,905 
Accumulated depreciation (191,498) (187,865) 

 69,252 40,040 

Gym Equipment   
At cost 243,469 243,469 
Accumulated depreciation (86,581) (37,888) 

 156,888 205,581 

Leasehold Improvements   
At cost 953,459 953,459 
Accumulated amortisation (154,764) (77,382) 

 798,695 876,077 

 1,025,301 1,122,967 

(a) Movements in Carrying Amounts   

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and 
the end of the current financial year: 

 

General & 
Office 

Equipment 
$ 

Competition 
& Lifesaving 
Equipment  

$ 

Gym 
Equipment 

$ 

Leasehold 
Improve- 

ments 
$ 

Total 
$ 

Year ended 30 April 2018      

Balance at the beginning of year 1,269 40,040 205,581 876,077 1,122,967 
Additions - 45,081 - - 45,081 

Depreciation expense (804) (15,868) (48,694) (77,381) (142,747) 

Balance at the end of the year 465 69,252 156,888 798,695 1,025,301 
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8  Trade and Other Payables  
    

  
2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
Current    
Trade payables  34,824 29,642 
GST payable  - 1,652 

  34,824 31,294 

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days.  The carrying 
amounts are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

9  Other Financial Liabilities  
CURRENT    
Rindle Pty Ltd (Maxima) loan  35,000 35,000 
Lease Liability Gym  107,059 107,059 

Total  142,059 142,059 

    

NON-CURRENT    
Rindle Pty Ltd (Maxima) loan  245,000 280,000 
Lease Liability Gym  20,615 61,281 

Total  265,615 341,281 

10  Employee Benefits  
Current   
Annual leave 11,164 12,082 

 11,164  12,082  

 

(a) Operating Leases   
Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:    
- not later than one year  107,059 107,059 
- between one year and five years  20,615 152,881 

  127,674 259,940 

Operating leases are in place for gym equipment and normally have a term between 2 and 5 years. Lease 
payments are increased on an annual basis to reflect market rentals. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

City of Perth SLSC Inc 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 April 2018 
 

14 

 

 

11  Auditors' Remuneration  
   
Remuneration of Optima Audit, for:   
- auditing the financial statements 4,000 4,000 

12  Contingencies  

In the opinion of the Committee of Management, the Association did not have any contingencies at 30 April 2018 

14  Events after the end of the Reporting Period  

The financial report was authorised for issue on 13 June 12018 by the Committee of Management. 

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the Association, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the 
Association in future financial years. 

15  Statutory Information  
 
The registered office of the association is: 

City of Perth SLSC Inc 
Challenger Pde 
City Beach  WA  6015 

 
The principal place of business is: 

Challenger Pde 
City Beach  WA  6015 
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In the opinion of the committee the financial report as set out on pages 1 to 19:  
 
1.  Present fairly the financial position of City of Perth SLSC Inc as at 30 April 2018 and its performance for the year ended 

on that date in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations) of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board. 

 
2.  At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that City of Perth SLSC Inc will be able to pay its 

debts as and when they fall due. 
 

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the committee and is signed for and on behalf of the committee 
by: 

 

 

President ......................................................................................... 
 

 

 

Treasurer......................................................................................... 
 
 
 
Dated this .............................. day of June 2018 

 

30
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